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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

 VISUALANT, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

    
  December 31, 2010   September 30, 2010  
ASSETS  (unaudited)   (audited)  
       
CURRENT ASSETS:       

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 55,872  $ 83,937 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $16,750 and $16,750, respectively   630,393   883,567 
Prepaid expenses   41,052   54,386 
Inventories   584,576   622,770 
Refundable tax assets   9,590   8,581 

Total current assets   1,321,483   1,653,241 
         
EQUIPMENT, NET   567,630   588,060 
         
OTHER ASSETS         

Intangible assets, net   868,886   918,069 
Goodwill   983,645   983,645 
Investment in Novabeam, Inc.   50   50 
Other assets   1,091   1,091 

         
TOTAL ASSETS  $ 3,742,785  $ 4,144,156 

         
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT         
         
CURRENT LIABILITIES:         

Accounts payable - trade  $ 1,572,941  $ 1,432,074 
Accounts payable - related parties   129,799   149,932 
Accrued expenses   231,277   169,364 
Accrued expenses - related parties   772,027   766,284 
Convertible notes payable, net of debt discount of $11,153 at 9/30/10   350,000   288,847 
Note payable - current portion of long term debt   1,087,848   1,513,495 

Total current liabilities   4,143,892   4,319,996 
         
LONG TERM  LIABILITIES:         

Long term debt   1,673,127   1,675,978 
         
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT:         

Preferred stock - $0.001 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, no shares         
 issued and outstanding   -   - 

Common stock - $0.001 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 38,393,845         
and 38,229,374 shares issued and outstanding at 12/31/10 and 9/30/10, respectively   38,394   38,229 

Additional paid in capital   6,871,191   6,835,647 
Accumulated deficit   (9,034,049)   (8,774,277)

Total stockholders' deficit   (2,124,464)   (1,900,401)
Noncontrolling interest   50,230   48,583 

         
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT  $ 3,742,785  $ 4,144,156 

         
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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 VISUALANT, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  

  Three Months Ended,  
  December 31, 2010   December 31, 2009  
  (unaudited)   (unaudited)  
REVENUE  $ 2,067,865  $ - 
COST OF SALES   1,654,660   - 
GROSS PROFIT   413,204   - 
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES   6,000   23,500 
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES   646,451   150,075 
OPERATING LOSS   (239,247)   (173,575)
         
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):         

Interest expense   (60,753)   (12,063)
Other income   40,868   - 

Total other expense   (19,885)   (12,063)
         
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES   (259,132)   (185,638)
         
Income taxes - current benefit   (1,009)   - 
         
NET LOSS   (258,124)   (185,638)
         
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST   1,648   - 
         
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO VISUALANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES COMMON SHAREHOLDERS  $ (259,772)  $ (185,638)
         
Basic and diluted loss per common share attributable to Visualant, Inc. and subsidiaries common shareholders-      

Basic and diluted loss per share  $ (0.01)  $ (0.01)
         

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding- basic and diluted   38,245,221   29,221,847 
         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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 VISUALANT, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

       
  Three Months Ended,  
  December 31, 2010   December 31, 2009  
  (unaudited)   (unaudited)  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:       

Net loss  $ (258,124)  $ (185,638)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash         

(used in) operating activities         
Depreciation and amortization   81,627   - 
Issuance of capital stock and warrants for services and expenses   4,800   49,000 
Stock based compensation   -   35,304 
Amortization of debt discount   -   4,101 
Loss on sale of assets   (831)   - 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         
Accounts receivable   253,175   - 
Prepaid expenses   13,333   (22,501)
Inventory   38,195   - 
Other assets   (1,009)   - 
Accounts payable - trade and accrued expenses   188,391   77,293 

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES   319,557   (42,441)
         
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:         

Capital expenditures   (4,049)   - 
Proceeds from sale of equipment   4,017   - 

NET CASH (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:   (32)   - 
         
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         

Payments on line of credit   (440,077)   - 
Proceeds from notes payable   22,478   - 
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock   30,909   - 
Repayments of capital leases

  (10,900)   - 
Proceeds from the issuance of convertible debt   50,000   250,000 

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES   (347,590)   250,000 
         
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (28,065)   207,559 
         
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period   83,937   5,325 
         
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period  $ 55,872  $ 212,884 
         
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:         

Interest paid  $ 17,058  $ - 
Taxes paid  $ -  $ - 

         
Non-cash investing and financing activities:         

Issuance of warrants in connection with convertible debt  $ -  $ 61,336 
         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VISUALANT, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
1. ORGANIZATION

Visualant, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on October 8, 1998 with authorized common stock of 200,000,000 shares at $0.001 par
value. On September 13, 2002 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.001 were authorized by the shareholders.  There are no preferred shares issued and the
terms have not been determined.
 
The Company closed the acquisition of TransTech Systems, Inc. (“TransTech”) of Aurora, OR on June 8, 2010 and recorded the results from June 8, 2010 to December 31, 2010.
As of June 8, 2010, the Company is no longer in the development stage.
 
This acquisition is expected to accelerate market entry and penetration through the acquisition of well-operated and positioned distributors of security and authentication systems
like TransTech, thus creating a natural distribution channel for products featuring our proprietary Spectrum Pattern Matching (“SPM”) technology.
 
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company and our subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 8 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the
information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. The financial statements for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 are unaudited
and include all adjustments necessary to a fair statement of the results of operations for the periods then ended. All such adjustments are of a normal, recurring nature. The results
of the Company’s operations for any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results of the Company’s operations for a full fiscal year. For further information, refer to
the financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on December 30, 2010.
 
2. GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal
course of business. The Company has incurred net losses of $1,148,920 and $950,609 for the years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Our current liabilities
exceeded our current assets by approximately $2.8 million as of December 31, 2010.  Our net cash used in operating activities approximated $440,968 for the year ended
September 30, 2010.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had $55,872 in cash. The Company needs to raise additional funding to continue its operations.  However, there can be no assurance that
financing or additional funding will be available to the Company on favorable terms or at all. If the Company raises additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt
securities, the issuance of such securities may result in dilution to existing stockholders.
 
The Company anticipates that it will record losses from operations for the foreseeable future. As of December 31, 2010, our accumulated deficit was $9.0 million.  The Company
has limited capital resources, and operations to date have been funded with the proceeds from private equity and debt financings. These conditions raise substantial doubt about our
ability to continue as a going concern. The audit report prepared by our independent registered public accounting firm relating to our financial statements for the year ended
September 30, 2010 includes an explanatory paragraph expressing the substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.

Continuation of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon obtaining additional working capital.  The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be
necessary if we are unable to continue as a going concern.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
 
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. Inter-
Company items and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - The Company classifies highly liquid temporary investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased as cash
equivalents. The Company maintains cash balances at various financial institutions. Balances at US banks are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to
US$250,000. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk for cash on deposit.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS - Accounts receivable consists primarily of amounts due to the Company from normal
business activities. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect the expected non-collection of accounts receivable based on past collection history and
specific risks identified within the portfolio. If the financial condition of the customers were to deteriorate resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, or if
payments from customers are significantly delayed, additional allowances might be required.
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INVENTORIES - Inventories consist primarily of printers and consumable supplies, including ribbons and cards, badge accessories, capture devices, and access control
components held for resale and are stated at the lower of cost or market on the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.  Inventories are considered available for resale when drop
shipped and invoiced directly to a customer from a vendor, or when physically received by TransTech at a warehouse location.  The company records a provision for excess and
obsolete inventory whenever an impairment has been identified. There is no provision for impaired inventory as of December 31, 2010.

EQUIPMENT - Equipment consists of machinery, leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures and software, which are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives or lease period of the relevant asset, generally 3-10 years, except for leasehold
improvements which are depreciated over 20 years. 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS / INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY - The Company amortizes the intangible assets and intellectual property acquired in connection with the acquisition of
TransTech, over thirty six months on a straight - line basis, which was the time frame that the management of the Company was able to project forward for future revenue, either
under agreement or through expected continued business activities.

GOODWILL – Goodwill is the excess of cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination.
With the adoption of ASC 350, goodwill is not amortized, rather it is tested for impairment annually, and will be tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or
circumstances change that would indicate the carrying amount may be impaired. Impairment testing for goodwill is done at a reporting unit level. Reporting units are one level
below the business segment level, but are combined when reporting units within the same segment have similar economic characteristics. Under the criteria set forth by ASC 350,
the Company has one reporting unit based on the current structure.  An impairment loss generally would be recognized when the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s net assets
exceeds the estimated fair value of the reporting unit.  The Company performs annual assessments and has determined that no impairment is necessary.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS - The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment when changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Long-lived assets under certain circumstances are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value. Assets to be disposed of and assets not expected to provide
any future service potential to the Company are recorded at the lower of carrying amount or fair value (less the projected cost associated with selling the asset). To the extent
carrying values exceed fair values, an impairment loss is recognized in operating results.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - The Company has adopted FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 820, “Fair Value Measurements”, for
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Topic 820 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to existing generally accepted accounting
principles that require the use of fair value measurements, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements. Topic 820
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Additionally, Topic 820 requires the use of valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. These inputs are
prioritized below:

 Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
   
 Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data
   
 Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data, which require the use of the reporting entity’s own assumptions.
 
All cash and cash equivalents include money market securities and commercial paper that are considered to be highly liquid and easily tradable as of December 31, 2010. These
securities are valued using inputs observable in active markets for identical securities and are therefore classified as Level 1 within our fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, such as cash, accounts receivable, inventory, accounts payable, taxes payable, accrued expenses and other
current liabilities, approximate their fair values because of the short maturity of these instruments. The Company’s notes payable approximates the fair value of such instruments
based upon management’s best estimate of interest rates that would be available to the Company for a similar financial arrangement at December 31, 2010.

 
In addition, Topic 820 expands opportunities to use fair value measurements in financial reporting and permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain
other items at fair value. The Company did not elect the fair value option for any of its qualifying financial instruments.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION – TransTech revenue is derived from other products and services. Revenue is considered realized when the services have been provided to the
customer, the work has been accepted by the customer and collectability is reasonably assured. Furthermore, if an actual measurement of revenue cannot be determined, we defer
all revenue recognition until such time that an actual measurement can be determined. If during the course of a contract management determines that losses are expected to be
incurred, such costs are charged to operations in the period such losses are determined. Revenues are deferred when cash has been received from the customer but the revenue has
not been earned. The Company recorded deferred revenue of $0 as of December 31, 2010 and September 30, 2010, respectively.
 
ADVERTISING COSTS - Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Such costs generally consist of major industry trade shows cooperatively with vendors and some advertising
in industry publications.   Advertising costs were insignificant during the three months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.
 
STOCK BASED COMPENSATION - The Company has share-based compensation plans under which employees, consultants, suppliers and directors may be granted restricted
stock, as well as options to purchase shares of Company common stock at the fair market value at the time of grant. Stock-based compensation cost is measured by the Company at
the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, over the requisite service period. For options issued to employees, the Company recognizes stock compensation costs utilizing
the fair value methodology over the related period of benefit.  Grants of stock options and stock to non-employees and other parties are accounted for in accordance with the ASC
505.

INCOME TAXES - Income tax benefit is based on reported loss before income taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the effect of temporary differences between asset and liability
amounts that are recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amounts that are recognized for income tax purposes. These deferred taxes are measured by applying currently
enacted tax laws where that company operates out of. The Company recognizes refundable and deferred assets to the extent that management has determined their realization. As
of December 31, 2010 and September 30, 2010, the Company had refundable tax assets related to TransTech of $9,590 and $8,581, respectively.

NET LOSS PER SHARE – Under the provisions of ASC 260, “Earnings Per Share,” basic loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss available to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the periods presented. Diluted net loss per share reflects the potential dilution that could
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that would then share in
the income of the Company, subject to anti-dilution limitations. The common stock equivalents have not been included as they are anti-dilutive. As of December 31, 2010, there
were options outstanding for the purchase of 4,955,000 common shares, warrants for the purchase of 1,133,333 common shares, 1,666,667 shares of common stock related to
convertible debt, which could potentially dilute future earnings per share. As of December 30, 2009, there were options outstanding for the purchase of 1,310,000 common shares
which could potentially dilute future earnings per share.

DIVIDEND POLICY - The Company has never paid any cash dividends and intends, for the foreseeable future, to retain any future earnings for the development of our business.
Our future dividend policy will be determined by the board of directors on the basis of various factors, including our results of operations, financial condition, capital requirements
and investment opportunities.

USE OF ESTIMATES - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

RECLASSIFICATION - Certain reclassifications have been made to the Company’s financial statements for prior periods to conform to the current presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on previously reported results of operations or retained earnings.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Recent accounting pronouncements applicable to the Company are summarized below. 
 
In April 2010,  the FASB issued  Accounting  Standard  Update  ("ASU")  2010-13, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Effect of Denominating the Exercise Price of
a Share-Based  Payment Award in the Currency of the Market in Which the Underlying Equity Security Trades - a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force. The
amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2010. Earlier application is
permitted.  The Company does not expect the provisions of ASU 2010-13 to have a material effect on the financial  position,  results of operations  or cash flows of the  Company.
In March 2010, the FASB issued ASU No.2010-11, which is included in the Certification under ASC 815. This update clarifies the type of embedded credit derivative that is
exempt from embedded derivative bifurcation requirements.  Only an embedded credit derivative that is related to the subordination of one financial instrument to another qualifies
for the exemption.  This guidance became effective for the Company's interim and annual reporting periods beginning January 1, 2010. The adoption of this guidance did not have
a material impact on the Company's financial statements.
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A variety of proposed or otherwise potential accounting standards are currently under study by standard setting organizations and various regulatory agencies. Due to the
tentative and preliminary nature of those proposed standards, management has not determined whether implementation of such proposed standards would be material to our
consolidated financial statements. 
 
4. DEVELOPMENT OF SPECTRUM PATTERN MATCHING TECHNOLOGY
 
The Company develops low-cost, high speed, light-based security and quality control solutions for use in homeland security, anti-counterfeiting, forgery/fraud prevention, brand
protection and process control applications.  Its patent-pending technology uses controlled illumination with specific bands of light, to establish a unique spectral signature for both
individual and classes of items.  When matched against existing databases, these spectral signatures allow precise identification and authentication of any item or substance.  This
breakthrough optical sensing and data capture technology is called Spectral Pattern Matching (SPM). SPM technology can be miniaturized and is easily integrated into a variety of
hand-held or fixed mount configurations, and can be combined in the same package as a bar-code or biometric scanner.   

 On October 23, 2008, the Company and RATLab entered into definitive agreements which provide for a non-commercial non-exclusive license of the Company’s technology to
RATLab for the purpose of continuing research and development with a license back to the Company for enhancements that are developed.  Further, an exclusive license was
entered into between the Company and RATLab for four fields of use:  medical, agricultural, environmental and jewelry.  This exclusive license provides for certain performance
milestones, a market-rate royalty to the Company and an equity participation in an entity to be formed by RATLab to commercialize the Company’s technology in the enumerated
fields of use.  In accordance with the definitive agreements, RATLab formed Novabeam, Inc.(“Novabeam”), an affiliate for purposes of commercializing the intellectual property,
of which 10% was sold and transferred to the Company for $50.  Finally, in satisfaction of outstanding matters, a total of 1,850,000 shares of the Company’s common stock was
issued, subject to certain restrictions, to current and former RATLab employees and consultants.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had three family patent applications with the U.S. Patent Office and one patent pending in Japan. As of the report date, the Company has
not received any notification from the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office as to whether any of the patents filed in 2007 will be granted. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH JAVELIN LLC (“Javelin”)

On January 3, 2011, the Company signed a Commercial License Agreement (“License Agreement”) with Seattle based Javelin for development of environmental diagnostic
applications of its SPM technology.
 
The License Agreement, which is exclusive for environmental applications, is perpetual and lasts until the Visualant IP expires. It provides for payments of 5% of Javelin’s
revenues, market-rate royalties of $15,000 in year one (which was prepaid) and increasing to $47,407 in year five and profit sharing of 25% of license or transfer of technology.
Javelin has certain performance milestones by year 2 and 3. The License Agreement can be terminated by Visualant for failure of Javelin to meet the performance milestones and
by Javelin with thirty days notice.

PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF RATLab LLC (“RATLab”)

On October 1, 2010, the Company signed a Letter of Intent to acquire all Visualant related assets of the RATLab.

The RATLab is a Seattle based research and development laboratory created by Dr. Tom Furness, founder and Director of the HITLab International, with labs at Seattle,
University of Canterbury in New Zealand, and the University of Tasmania in Australia. Guided by Dr. Tom Furness and Dr. Brian Schowengerdt, a research scientist in the field
of optics and vision science, who developed the Spectral Pattern Matching (“SPM”) technology under contract for Visualant.

With this acquisition, the Company will consolidate all intellectual property relating to the SPM technology.  In addition to its current authentication and security applications of
SPM, the Company will now own all other applications including the important fields of medicine, agriculture, and the environment and begin the creation of the Visualant
Laboratory.

Upon the closing of this asset acquisition transaction, Dr. Tom Furness and Dr. Brian Schowengerdt will continue to provide technology leadership to us, under terms that are still
subject to negotiation.

The Company is proposing to acquire the Visualant related assets of the RATLab as follows:

a.         One million shares (1,000,000) of our common stock at closing valued at twenty cents ($0.20) per share, the price during the negotiation of this agreement.
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b.         Two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000), with one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) payable at closing and one hundred and fifty thousand dollars
($150,000) to be paid no later than the first anniversary of closing.

c.         The outstanding promissory note owing to Tom Furness in the amount of $65,000 with accrued interest is to be paid at closing.  The interest is to be calculated on
a 7% annualized basis beginning September 1, 2006.

On November 28, 2010 and January 31, 2011, the parties signed Extensions of the Letter of Intent. The acquisition is expected to close May 1, 2011.

PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF EAGLE TECHNOLOGIES USA (“Eagle”)

On January 24, 2011, the Company signed a letter of intent to acquire Eagle (www.eagletechnologiesusa.com) of Brea, California.

Eagle, founded by card industry leaders Greg and Ryan Hawkins and Jeff Fulmer in 2008, has rapidly emerged as the premier provider of blank PVC and polyester composite
cards to the identification market.  
 
With this acquisition, Visualant will continue with its strategic initiative to consolidate relevant security and authentication assets.  At the same time, Visualant will provide Eagle
and its management the human and capital resources necessary to rapidly accelerate its growth.  Upon the closing of this acquisition, the Eagle team will continue to manage Eagle
with full profit and loss responsibility.

Under the terms of the Letter of Intent, Eagle will be acquired for $1 million, consisting of 1.2 million shares of restricted VSUL common stock valued at $.4167 per share, the
price during the period of the negotiations, and a promissory note in the amount of $500,000 payable as follows:

 1) $150,000 will be paid in cash to Seller on the earlier of the one-year anniversary of the closing date of the Acquisition or upon the closing of more than Two
Million Five Hundred Thousand in financing.

   
 2) $150,000 will be paid in cash to Seller on the earlier of the two-year anniversary of the closing date of the Acquisition or upon the closing of more than Five

Million in aggregate financing since closing.
   
 3) $200,000 on the earlier of the third anniversary of closing date of the Acquisition or upon the closing of more than Seven Million Five Hundred Thousand

in aggregate financing since closing.

The promissory note is collateralized by the stock and assets of Eagle until paid in full. In addition, consideration will be provided post closing to the ownership and senior
management in Eagle in form of the creation of a bonus pool.  The bonus pool will be comprised of one million shares of VSUL common stock which shall be escrowed at closing
and released to Eagle ownership and management if they generate $4 million in cash flow positive gross revenues within two years of closing of this transaction. The shares shall
be distributed at the sole discretion of the ownership and senior management of Eagle.

The letter of intent is subject to (i) approval of the acquisition by the Board of Visualant and Eagle; (ii) completion of due diligence; and, (iii) agreement to customary terms and
conditions. The acquisition is expected to close by March 31, 2011.

5. ACQUISITION OF TRANSTECH

The Company closed the acquisition of TransTech of Aurora, OR on June 8, 2010. On this date, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase, Security and Stock Pledge
Agreements which are included as Exhibits to the Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 12, 2010.

TransTech, founded in 1994, is a distributor of access control and authentication systems serving the security and law enforcement markets.   With recorded revenues of $10
million in 2009, TransTech has a respected national reputation for outstanding product knowledge, sales and service excellence.
 
This acquisition is expected to accelerate market entry and penetration through the acquisition of well-operated and positioned distributors of security and authentication systems
like TransTech, thus creating a natural distribution channel for products featuring the company’s proprietary SPM technology. 
 
The Company acquired its 100% interest in TransTech by issuing a Promissory Note (“Note”) to James Gingo, the President of TransTech, in the amount of $2,300,000, plus
interest at the rate of three and one-half percent (3.5%) per annum from the date of the Note. The Note is secured by a security interest in the stock and assets of TransTech, and is
payable over a period of three (3) years as follows:
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(i)        The sum of $650,000, the amount of any accrued interest due on the Bonderson debt of $600,000 owed by James Gingo to the Bonderson Family
Living Trust (“Bonderson Debt”) and interest on the unpaid balance, shall be paid to Seller on the earlier of: (A) the one (1) year anniversary of the closing date; or (B) on the
closing of $2,500,000 or more in aggregate financing (whether debt, equity or some combination thereof) after the closing date;
 

(ii)       The sum of $650,000, the amount of any accrued interest due on the Bonderson debt owed by James Gingo and interest on the unpaid balance shall be
paid to Seller on the earlier of: (A) the two (2) year anniversary of the closing date; or (B) on the closing of $5,000,000 or more in aggregate financing (whether debt, equity or
some combination thereof) after the closing date; and
 

(iii)      The remaining balance of the Note and interest thereon shall be paid to Seller on the earlier of: (A) the three year anniversary of the closing date; or
(B) on the closing of $7,500,000 or more in aggregate financing (whether debt, equity or some combination thereof) after the closing date.
 
On June 8, 2010, the Company issued a total of 3,800,000 shares of restricted common stock of the Company to James Gingo, Jeff Kruse and Steve Waddle, executives of
TransTech, and Paul Bonderson, a TransTech investor.  The parties valued the shares in this transaction at $76,000 or $0.02 per share, the closing bid price during negotiations.
 
The cost to acquire these assets has been preliminarily allocated to the assets acquired according to estimated fair values and is subject to adjustment when additional information
concerning asset valuations is finalized, but no later than June 8, 2011. The preliminary allocation is as follows:
 

Common stock  $ 76,000  
Notes payable   2,300,000  
Accounts receivable, net   (755,836 )
Inventories   (444,105 )
Equipment, net   (590,955 )
Other assets   (141,870 )
Accounts payable - trade   921,183  
Notes payable - current portion of long term debt   499,680  
Other liabilities   103,193  
     
Total purchase price  $ 1,967,290  
     
 Portion allocated to identifiable intangible assets  $ 983,645  
 Portion allocated to goodwill   983,645  
     
Total  $ 1,967,290  

 
The results of operations of TransTech were included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the period June 9, 2010 to December 31, 2010.

6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE/CUSTOMER CONCENTRATION

Accounts receivable were $630,393 and $883,567 net of allowance as of December 31, 2010 and September 30, 2010, respectively. The Company had two customers in excess of
10% (27.3% and 10.8%) of our consolidated revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2010. The Company has one customer with accounts receivable in excess of 10%
as of December 31, 2010 (16.2%). The Company does expect to have customers with consolidated revenues or accounts receivable balances of 10% of total accounts receivable in
the foreseeable future.

7. INVENTORIES

Inventories were $584,576 and $622,770 as of December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2010, respectively. Inventories consist primarily of printers and consumable supplies,
including ribbons and cards, badge accessories, capture devices, and access control components held for resale. There is no provision for impaired inventory as of December 31,
2010 and September 30, 2010.

8. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation, was $567,630 and $588,060 as of December 31, 2010 and September 30, 2010, respectively. Accumulated depreciation was
$528,354 and $599,784 as of December 31, 2010 and September 30, 2010, respectively. Total depreciation expense was $21,293 and $0 for the three months ended December 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively. All equipment is used for selling, general and administrative purposes and accordingly all depreciation is classified in selling, general and
administrative expenses
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Property and equipment as of December 31, 2010 was comprised of the following: 

 
 Estimated  December 31, 2010  
 Useful Lives  Purchased   Capital Leases   Total  
           
Machinery and equipment 3-10 years  $ 153,049  $ 87,038  $ 240,088 
Leasehold improvements 20 years   600,000   -   600,000 
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years   45,676   101,260   146,936 
Software and websites 3- 7 years   64,112   44,849   108,961 
Less: accumulated depreciation    (365,789)   (162,565)   (528,354)
   $ 497,048  $ 70,582  $ 567,630 

 
9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2010 and September 30, 2010 consisted of the following:
 

 Estimated  December 31,   September 30,  
 Useful Lives  2010   2010  
        
Customer contracts 5 years  $ 983,645  $ 983,645 
Less: accumulated amortization    (114,759)  (65,576)
    Intangible assets, net   $ 868,886  $ 918,069 

 
Total amortization expense was $49,182 and $0 for the three months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

 
The fair value of the TransTech intellectual property acquired was $983,645, estimated by using a discounted cash flow approach based on future economic benefits associated with
agreements with customers, or through expected continued business activities with its customers. In summary, the estimate was based on a projected income approach and related
discounted cash flows over five years, with applicable risk factors assigned to assumptions in the forecasted results.

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable were $1,572,941 and $1,432,074 as of December 31, 2010 and September 30, 2010, respectively. Such liabilities consisted of amounts due to vendors for
inventory purchases and technology development, external audit, legal and other expenses incurred by the Company.  

11. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

On December 7, 2009, the Company obtained $250,000 of financing from Coach Capital pursuant to a Convertible Promissory Note. Interest accrues at 8% and the $250,000 may
be converted into restricted common stock on November 27, 2010 at $0.15 per share.  This financing places certain restrictions on the Company In addition, Coach Capital
received warrants to purchase 833,333 shares of the Company’s common stock at $0.15 per share.  The warrant expires 3 years from the date of issuance. The parties are currently
negotiating the conversion of the Promissory Note into restricted common stock.

Upon issuing the Note to Coach Capital, the Company recognized the note and warrants based on their relative fair values of $250,000 and $81,000, respectively.  The fair value of
the note was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The relative fair value of the warrants was classified as a component of additional paid-in capital with the
corresponding amount reflected as a contra-liability to the debt.  The fair value of the warrants was determined using the Black Scholes model, assuming a term of three years,
volatility of 267%, no dividends, and a risk-free interest rate of 1.34%.

The convertible note payable balance as of December 31, 2010 was $250,000. The Company expensed $11,153 in interest during the three months ended December 31, 2010.

On July 14, 2010, November 9, 2010 and January 3, 2011 the Company obtained $50,000 of financing from Asher Enterprises, Inc. (“Asher”) pursuant to a Securities Purchase
Agreement and Convertible Promissory Note. Interest is accrued at 8% and the $50,000 is convertible into restricted common stock on or before April 19, 2011, August 11,
2011and September 30, 2011 at Asher’s request at a 39% discount to the three lowest close bid prices during the ten days prior to conversion.   This financing places certain
restrictions on the Company. The Company expensed $1,468 during the three months ended December 31, 2010.
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12. NOTES PAYABLE, CAPITALIZED LEASES AND LONG TERM DEBT
 
Notes payable, capitalized leases and long term debt as of December 31, 2010 and September 30, 2010 consisted of the following:
 

  December 31,   September 30,  
  2010   2010  
       
BFI Finance Corp Secured Credit Facility  $ 203,258  $ 643,334 
TransTech capitalized leases, net of capitalized interest   43,537   54,437 
Related party notes payable-         
James Gingo Promissory Note   2,300,000   2,300,000 
Bradley Sparks   73,228   50,750 
Lynn Felsinger   82,000   82,000 
Ron Erickson and affiliated parties   58,952   58,952 
Total debt   2,760,975   3,189,473 
Less current portion of long term debt   (1,087,848)   (1,513,495)
Long term debt  $ 1,673,127  $ 1,675,978 

 
BFI Finance Corp Secured Credit Facility
 
On December 9, 2008 TransTech entered into a $1,000,000 secured credit facility with BFI Finance Corp to fund its operations.  The rate is prime interest + 2.5%, with a floor for
prime interest of 5.5%.  On December 12, 2010, the secured credit facility was renewed for 6 months, with a floor for Prime of 4.5%. The eligible borrowing is based on 80% of
eligible trade accounts receivable, not to exceed $700,000, and 35% of inventory value, not to exceed $300,000, for a total cap of $1,000,000. As of December 31, 2010, the
outstanding balance under this facility was $203,258. The secured credit facility is guaranteed by James Gingo, the President of TransTech.
 
Capitalized Leases
 
TransTech has capitalized leases for equipment. The leases have a remaining lease term of 1-55 months. The aggregate future minimum lease payments under capital leases, to the
extent the leases have early cancellation options and excluding escalation charges, are as follows:
 

Years Ended December 31,  Total  
2011  $ 20,410 
2012   16,062 
2013   11,378 
2014   3,312 
2015   1,932 
Total   53,093 

Less current portion of capitalized leases   (9,557)
                          Long term capital leases  $ 43,537 

 
The imputed interest rate in the capitalized leases is approximately 10.5%.
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Related Party Notes Payable
 
The Company acquired its 100% interest in TransTech by issuing a Promissory Note (“Note”) to James Gingo, the President of TransTech, in the amount of $2,300,000, plus
interest at the rate of three and one-half percent (3.5%) per annum from the date of the Note. The Note is secured by a security interest in the stock and assets of TransTech, and
is payable over a period of three (3)�years as follows:
 

(i)        The sum of $650,000, the amount of any accrued interest due on the Bonderson debt of $600,000 owed by James Gingo to the Bonderson Family Living
Trust (“Bonderson Debt”) and interest on the unpaid balance, shall be paid to Seller on the earlier of: (A) the one (1) year anniversary of the closing date; or (B) on the closing of
$2,500,000 or more in aggregate financing (whether debt, equity or some combination thereof) after the closing date. 

 
(ii)       The sum of $650,000, the amount of any accrued interest due on the Bonderson debt owed by James Gingo and interest on the unpaid balance shall be

paid to Seller on the earlier of: (A) the two (2) year anniversary of the closing date; or (B) on the closing of $5,000,000 or more in aggregate financing (whether debt, equity or
some combination thereof) after the closing date; and
 

(iii)      The remaining balance of the Note and interest thereon shall be paid to Seller on the earlier of: (A) the three year anniversary of the closing date; or
(B) on the closing of $7,500,000 or more in aggregate financing (whether debt, equity or some combination thereof) after the closing date.
 
On February 27, 2007, the Company entered into a demand note with former CEO and President, Bradley E. Sparks totaling $50,000 plus loan fees of $750.  As of December 31,
2010, the outstanding note payable totaled $50,750 consisting of the note payable to Mr. Sparks.  Interest expense accrues on the note at a rate of 18% per annum.  Accrued interest
of $35,314 as of December 31, 2010 on the note payable is recorded in the balance sheet in accrued expenses and other liabilities.
 
Any delays in repayment of the principal and accrued interest on the note payable upon demand result in a penalty interest rate of 30% per annum.  The interest due to Mr. Sparks
became in arrears on February 16, 2008 and has not been paid as of the date of this filing.  Mr. Sparks has not demanded repayment of the note as of the date of this filing.

On September 30, 2009, the Company entered into a second demand note with former CEO and President, Bradley E. Sparks totaling $22,478.  As of December 31, 2010, the
outstanding note payable totaled $22,478 consisting of the note payable to Mr. Sparks.  Interest expense accrues on the note at a rate of 8% per annum.  Accrued interest of $2,252
as of December 31, 2010 on the notes payable is recorded in the balance sheet in accrued expenses and other liabilities.

On April 30, 2009, accounts payable owed to Lynn Felsinger, a consultant, totaling $82,000 was converted into a demand note. Ms. Felsinger has not demanded repayment of the
note as of the date of this filing.

Mr. Ronald Erickson, our Chief Executive Officer, converted outstanding debt with accrued interest in the amount of $152,971 into 1,019,806 shares of common stock of the
Company valued at $0.15 per share on March 27, 2009. In addition, an affiliate of Mr. Erickson’s, Juliz  I Limited Partnership, loaned the Company operating funds during fiscal
2009.  The balance outstanding at December 31, 2010 is $34,630 plus interest of $5,556.  Additionally, Mr. Erickson incurred expenses on behalf of the Company for a total of
$24,322 during the 2009 fiscal year.  This balance was converted into a loan as of September 30, 2009 which bears interest at 8%.  Accrued interest was $2,436 as of December 31,
2010.

Aggregate maturities for notes payable, capitalized leases and long term debt by year are as follows:
 

Years Ended December 31,  Total  
2011  $ 1,087,848 
2012   659,498 
2013   1,009,330 
2014   2,716 
2015   1,583 
Total  $ 2,760,975 

 
13. EQUITY

The following equity issuances occurred during the three months ended December 31, 2010.

On November 17, 2010, the Company issued 20,000 shares of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock to Robert Jones for advisory services. The shares were valued at
$.24 per share, the closing price on November 17, 2010.

On December 23, 2010, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“Agreement”) with Seaside pursuant to which Seaside agreed to purchase restricted shares of
the Company’s common stock from time to time over a 12-month period, provided that certain conditions are met.
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Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company has the right to sell and issue to Seaside restricted shares of the Company’s common stock over a 12-month period commencing
on the closing date. Visualant will be entitled to sell shares each month during the following 12 months, subject to certain conditions and limitations.  With respect to each
subsequent closing, Visualant will not be obligated to sell any of its common stock to Seaside at a price lower than $0.25 per share, and Seaside’s beneficial ownership of the
Company’s common stock will not exceed 4.99%. Seaside is not permitted to short sale the Company’s common stock.
 
Visualant paid Seaside’s legal fees and expenses in the amount of $25,000 for the initial closing, and agreed to pay $2,500 for each subsequent closing.  Visualant also has agreed
to pay 7.0% in finder’s fees (to be paid in connection with each draw down) and issue 10,113 common stock warrants exercisable at $0.21395 per share.
 
The Agreement may be terminated by Seaside (i) upon written notice to the Company if the initial closing has not been consummated on or before December 31, 2010; or (ii) upon
written notice to the Company, if at any time prior to the final subsequent closing the Company consummates a financing to which Seaside is not a party.
 
The Agreement also contains certain representations and warranties of Visualant and Seaside, including customary investment-related representations provided by Seaside, as well
as acknowledgements by Seaside that it has reviewed certain disclosures of the Company (including the periodic reports that the Company has filed with the SEC) and that the
Company’s issuance of the shares has not been registered with the SEC or qualified under any state securities laws.  Visualant provided customary representations regarding,
among other things, its organization, capital structure, subsidiaries, disclosure reports, absence of certain legal or governmental proceedings, financial statements, tax matters,
insurance matters, real property and other assets, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  Seaside’s representations and warranties are qualified in their entirety (to
the extent applicable) by the Company’s disclosures in the reports it files with the SEC.  Visualant also delivered confidential disclosure schedules qualifying certain of its
representations and warranties in connection with executing and delivering the Agreement.

As of December 31, 2010 and February 11, 2011, the Company sold to Seaside 144,471 shares at a purchase price of $.214 per share, or an aggregate price of $30,910.
 
14. STOCK OPTIONS

Description of Stock Option Plan
 
In 2005, our Board of Directors adopted a combined incentive and nonqualified stock option plan for employees, consultants, suppliers and directors (“2005 Stock Option
Plan”).   On October 9, 2006 the Board of Directors authorized an increase in shares available for grant from 2 million to 4 million, subject to stockholder approval.
 
Determining Fair Value Under ASC 505
 
The Company records compensation expense associated with stock options and other equity-based compensation using the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model for
estimating fair value of stock options granted under our plan. The Company amortizes the fair value of stock options on a ratable basis over the requisite service periods, which are
generally the vesting periods. The expected life of awards granted represents the period of time that they are expected to be outstanding.  The Company estimates the volatility of
our common stock based on the historical volatility of its own common stock over the most recent period corresponding with the estimated expected life of the award. The
Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model on the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues
with an equivalent remaining term equal to the expected life of the award. The Company has not paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying any
cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Consequently, the Company uses an expected dividend yield of zero in the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model and adjust
share-based compensation for changes to the estimate of expected equity award forfeitures based on actual forfeiture experience. The effect of adjusting the forfeiture rate is
recognized in the period the forfeiture estimate is changed.

Stock Option Activity
 
On November 17, 2010, the Board of Directors authorized to TransTech employees, the grant of non-qualified options to purchase 220,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock at $0.24 per share. The non- qualified stock option grants vest quarterly over three years and expire in five (5) years.
 
There is currently 1,955,000 options to purchase common stock at $.495 per share outstanding at December 31, 2010 under the 2005 Stock Option Plan. The Company recorded
$0 of compensation expense, net of related tax effects, relative to stock options for the three months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 in accordance with ASC 505. Net loss per
share (basic and diluted) associated with this expense was approximately ($0.00).
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15. OTHER SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

See Note 12 for discussion of notes payable issued to the Company’s former CEO and President during the quarter ended March 31, 2007.   Other than the note payable, related
interest and payroll related accruals, all amounts are recorded in the related party accounts payable balance.  As of the filing date, Mr. Erickson beneficially owns 6,506,473 shares
of common stock.

Mr. Sparks is owed $721,333 of accrued salary plus $57,998 which has been accrued to pay applicable payroll taxes, FUTA, etc.  Additionally, interest of $37,565 is owed Mr.
Sparks for the note payable described in Note 11 to these Notes to Financial Statements.  Mr. Sparks is also owed $6,315 for cash amounts advanced by him to Visualant to fund
operating expenses since his employment.

Dr. Kawahata, one of the Company’s directors, is owed $90,906 by the Visualant for services rendered to the Company. 

16. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no pending legal proceedings against the Company that are expected to have a material adverse effect on its cash flows, financial condition or results of operations.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

Agreement with Mark Scott

On May 10, 2010, the Board of Directors approved the appointment of Mr. Scott as Chief Financial Officer based on the (i) cash compensation of $2,000 per month until cash is
available at which time cash compensation shall be increased to $8,000 per month; (ii) bonus cash compensation; shall be at the discretion of the senior executive and the board of
directors; (iii) benefits after the closing of funding at discretion of Mr. Scott and equivalent to other employees in the company; and (iv) 1,000,000 shares of restricted common
stock to be granted upon signing at the closing bid price of $.02 per share on May 7, 2010.

Agreement with James Gingo

On June 8, 2010, the Company entered into an Employment Agreement (“Gingo Agreement”) with Mr. James Gingo, Founder and President of TransTech. The Gingo Agreement
has a three year term beginning on June 8, 2010 at the annual base salary of $200,000 per year. The Gingo Agreement provides for participation in the Company’s benefit programs
available to other employees (including group insurance arrangements). Also under the Gingo Agreement, Mr. Gingo is eligible for discretionary performance bonuses based upon
performance criteria to be determined by the Company’s Compensation Committee based on criteria under development up to 50% of his annual salary. If Mr. Gingo’s
employment is terminated without Cause (as defined in the Gingo Agreement), Mr. Gingo will be entitled to a payment equal to one year’s annual base salary paid over the next
year.
 
LEASES

The Company is obligated under various non-cancelable operating leases for their various facilities and certain equipment.

The Company’s executive office is located at 500 Union Street, Suite 406, Seattle, Washington, USA, 98101. On January 1, 2011, the Company entered into a lease with a party
affiliated with the Chairman of the Board of the Company. We pay $799 per month. The lease is cancellable with ten days notice.

TransTech leases a total of approximately 9,750 square feet of office and warehouse space for its administrative offices, product inventory and shipping operations, at a monthly
rental of $4,292. The lease was extended from March 2011 for an additional five year term at a monthly rental of $4,721. There are two additional five year renewals with a set
accelerating increase of 10% per 5 year term.  TransTech also leases additional 500 square feet of off-site space at $250 per month from a related party.
 
The aggregate future minimum lease payments under operating leases, to the extent the leases have early cancellation options and excluding escalation charges, are as follows:
 

Years Ended December 31,  Total  
2011  $ 55,794 
2012   56,652 
2013   56,652 
2014   56,652 
2015   56,652 

Beyond   9,444 
Total  $ 291,844 

 
17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
 
The Company evaluates subsequent events, for the purpose of adjustment or disclosure up to the date the financial statements were issued. 
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 
Forward-looking statements in this report reflect the good-faith judgment of our management and the statements are based on facts and factors as we currently know them.
Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties and actual results and outcomes may differ materially from the results and outcomes discussed in the forward-
looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences in results and outcomes include, but are not limited to, those discussed below as well as those
discussed elsewhere in this report (including in Part II, Item 1A (Risk Factors)). Readers are urged not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements because they
speak only as of the date of this report. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements in order to reflect any event or circumstance that may arise
after the date of this report.

THE COMPANY AND OUR BUSINESS

We were incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on October 8, 1998 with authorized common stock of 200,000,000 shares at $0.001 par value. On September 13,
2002, 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.001 were authorized by the shareholders.  There are no preferred shares issued and the terms have not been
determined. Our executive offices are located in Seattle, Washington.  
 
We develop low-cost, high speed, light-based security and quality control solutions for use in homeland security, anti-counterfeiting, forgery/fraud prevention, brand protection and
process control applications.  Our patent-pending technology uses controlled illumination with specific bands of light, to establish a unique spectral signature for both individual
and classes of items.  When matched against existing databases, these spectral signatures allow precise identification and authentication of any item or substance.  This
breakthrough optical sensing and data capture technology is called Spectral Pattern Matching (SPM). SPM technology can be miniaturized and is easily integrated into a variety of
hand-held or fixed mount configurations, and can be combined in the same package as a bar-code or biometric scanner. As of December 31, 2010, we had three family patent
applications with the U.S. Patent Office and one patent pending in Japan.

Through our wholly owned subsidiary, TransTech, we provide security and authentication solutions to security and law enforcement markets throughout the United States.

ACQUISITION OF TRANSTECH

We closed the acquisition of TransTech of Aurora, OR on June 8, 2010 and recorded the results from June 8, 2010 to December 31, 2010.
 
TransTech, founded in 1994, is a distributor of access control and authentication systems serving the security and law enforcement markets.   With recorded revenues of $10
million in 2009, TransTech has a respected national reputation for outstanding product knowledge, sales and service excellence.
 
This acquisition is expected to accelerate market entry and penetration through the acquisition of well-operated and positioned distributors of security and authentication systems
like TransTech, thus creating a natural distribution channel for products featuring our proprietary SPM technology.
 
Our strategy for the next 18 to 24 months is to generate substantially increased revenues through the further acquisition of other high quality companies complementary to
TransTech, growth of TransTech and the sale and license of SPM products. 

LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH JAVELIN

On January 3, 2011, we signed a Commercial License Agreement (“License Agreement”) with Seattle based Javelin for development of environmental diagnostic applications of
our SPM technology.
 
The License Agreement, which is exclusive for environmental applications, is perpetual and lasts until the Visualant IP expires. It provides for payments of 5% of Javelin’s
revenues, market-rate royalties of $15,000 in year one (which was prepaid) and increasing to $47,407 in year five and profit sharing of 25% of license or transfer of technology.
Javelin has certain performance milestones by year 2 and 3. The License Agreement can be terminated by Visualant for failure of Javelin to meet the performance milestones and
by Javelin with thirty days notice.
 
PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF RATLAB
 
On October 1, 2010, we signed a Letter of Intent to acquire all Visualant related assets of the RATLab.

The RATLab is a Seattle based research and development laboratory created by Dr. Tom Furness, founder and Director of the HITLab International, with labs at Seattle,
University of Canterbury in New Zealand, and the University of Tasmania in Australia. The RATLab is guided by Dr. Tom Furness and Dr. Brian Schowengerdt, a research
scientist in the field of optics and vision science, who developed the Spectral Pattern Matching (“SPM”) technology under contract for Visualant.
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With this acquisition, we will consolidate all intellectual property relating to the SPM technology in the Company.  In addition to its current authentication and security applications
of SPM, we will now own all other applications including the important fields of medicine, agriculture, and the environment and begin the creation of the Visualant Laboratory.

Upon the closing of this asset acquisition transaction, Dr. Tom Furness and Dr. Brian Schowengerdt will continue to provide technology leadership to us, under terms that are still
subject to negotiation.

On November 28, 2010 and January 31, 2011, the parties signed Extensions of the Letter of Intent. The acquisition is expected to close May 1, 2011.
 
PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF EAGLE

On January 24, 2011, we signed a letter of intent to acquire Eagle (www.eagletechnologiesusa.com) of Brea, California.

Eagle, founded by card industry leaders Greg and Ryan Hawkins and Jeff Fulmer in 2008, has rapidly emerged as the premier provider of blank PVC and polyester composite
cards to the identification market.  Eagle will provide an immediate additional $1 million in annual revenue to Visualant and is projected to grow to $3 to $4 million in revenues
over the next two years as Eagle increases the range and technical sophistication of its product line.

With this acquisition, we will continue with its strategic initiative to consolidate relevant security and authentication assets.  At the same time, we will provide Eagle and its
management the human and capital resources necessary to rapidly accelerate its growth.  Upon the closing of this acquisition, the Eagle team will continue to manage Eagle with
full profit and loss responsibility.

THE COMPANY’S COMMON STOCK
 
Our common stock trades on the OTCBB Exchange under the symbol “VSUL.OB
 
KEY MARKET PRIORITIES
 
Currently, our key market priorities are, among other things, to:
 
 • Commercialize the Visualant technology and close sales in the United States and Japan.
 
 • Implement synergies between TransTech acquisition and the Company.
 
 • Develop license and royalty producing opportunities for the SPM technology outside the core security and authentication marketplace to include medical,

agricultural and environmental diagnostics.
   
 • Close the acquisition of the Visualant related assets of the RATLab LLC and Eagle.
   
 • Pursue additional acquisitions which extend the product range and geographic reach of TransTech.
 
 • Improve profitability of the Company by increasing sales and managing expenses.
 
 • Acquire growth businesses at discounted prices in our target sectors and markets in conjunction with business partners. We expect to focus on growth opportunities

with distressed businesses that require improvements in management, financial processes and liquidity to be successful.
 
 • Leverage our presence in Asia utilizing our Japanese directors.
 
 • Enhance our investor relations services.
 
PRIMARY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
 
We are exposed to various risks related to our need for additional financing, the sale of significant numbers of our shares, a volatile market price for our common stock and our
merger and acquisition activities. These risks and uncertainties are discussed in more detail below in Part II, Item 1A. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 
The following table presents certain consolidated statement of operations information and presentation of that data as a percentage of change from period-to-period.

 
(dollars in thousands)
 
   Three Months Ended December 31,  
   2010   2009   $ Variance   % Variance  
              
Revenue   $ 2,068  $ -  $ 2,068   100.0%
Cost of sales   1,655   -   1,655   -100.0%
Gross profit   413   -   413   100.0%
Research and development expenses   6   24   (18)   75.0%
Selling, general and administrative expenses   647   150   497   -331.3%
Operating loss   (240)   (174)   (66)   -37.9%
Other income (expense):                 
 Interest expense   (60)   (12)   (48)   -400.0%
 Other income   41   -   41   100.0%
Total other expense   (19)   (12)   (7)   -58.3%
Loss before income taxes   (259)   (186)   (73)   -39.2%
 Income taxes - current benefit   (1)   -   (1)   100.0%
Net loss    (258)   (186)   (72)   -38.7%
 Non-controlling interest   2   -   2   -100.0%
Net loss attributable to Visualant, Inc. common shareholders  $ (260)  $ (186)  $ (74)   -39.8%
 
THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 COMPARED TO THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
 
SALES

Net revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2010 increased $2,068,000 to $2,068,000 as compared to $0 for the three months ended December 31, 2009.
 

We closed the acquisition of TransTech of Aurora, OR on June 8, 2010 and recorded the results from June 8, 2010 to December 31, 2010
 
COST OF SALES
 
Cost of sales for the three months ended December 31, 2010 increased $1,655,000 to $1,655,000 as compared to $0 for the three months ended December 31, 2009.
 
We closed the acquisition of TransTech of Aurora, OR on June 8, 2010 and recorded the results from June 8, 2010 to December 31, 2010.
 
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
 
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2010 increased $497,000 to $647,000 as compared to $150,000 for the three months ended
December 31, 2009.
 
We closed the acquisition of TransTech of Aurora, OR on June 8, 2010 and recorded the results from June 8, 2010 to December 31, 2010.
 
The selling, general and administrative expenses consisted primarily of research and development expenses, employee and independent contractor expenses, overhead, equipment
and depreciation, amortization of identifiable intangible assets and intellectual property, professional and consulting fees, sales and marketing costs, legal, stock option and other
general and administrative costs.

 
OTHER INCOME/EXPENSE
 
Other expense for the three months ended December 31, 2010 was $19,000 as compared to other expense of $12,000 for the three months ended December 31, 2009. The expenses
for the three months ended December 31, 2010 included $60,000 for interest expense, offset by $41,000 in other income.

 
The 2009 other expense was primarily related to interest expense of $12,000
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NET LOSS
 
Net loss for the three months ended December 31, 2010 was $258,000 as compared to a net loss of $186,000 for the three months ended December 31, 2009 for the reasons
discussed above.
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
 
We had cash of $55,872, a net working capital deficit of approximately $2.8 million and total indebtedness of $ 5.8 million as of December 31, 2010.

 
We will need to obtain additional financing to implement the business plan, service our debt repayments and acquire new businesses. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to secure funding, or that if such funding is available, whether the terms or conditions would be acceptable to us.

 
Volatility and disruption of financial markets could affect our access to credit. The current difficult economic market environment is causing contraction in the availability of credit
in the marketplace. This could potentially reduce or eliminate the sources of liquidity for the Company.

 
If the Company is unable to obtain additional financing, we may need to restructure our operations, divest all or a portion of our business or file for bankruptcy.
 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 
Net cash provided by operating activities for the three months ended December 31, 2010 was $.3 million. This amount was primarily related to a net loss of $.3 million, offset by
depreciation and amortization and other non-cash expenses of $.1 million, a decrease in accounts receivable of $.3 million and an increase in accounts payable and accrued
expenses of $.2 million.
 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 
Net cash used in financing activities for the three months ended December 31, 2010 was $.3 million. This amount was primarily related to payments on the line of credit of $.4
million.

 
The Company’s contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2010 are summarized in the table below:
 
                
     Less Than         Greater Than  

Contractual Cash Obligations  Total   1 Year   1-3 Years   3-5 Years   5 Years  
Operating leases  $ 291,844  $ 55,794  $ 113,304  $ 113,304  $ 9,442 
Capital lease obligations   0   0   0   0   0 
Note payable   2,760,975   1,087,848   1,668,828   4,300   0 
Capital expenditures   140,000   30,000   55,000   30,000   25,000 
Acquisitions   815,000   165,000   450,000   200,000   0 
  $ 4,007,819  $ 1,338,642  $ 2,287,132  $ 347,604  $ 34,442 
 
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

This item is not applicable. 
 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our principal executive officer and principal financial officer evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
under the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2010. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of December 31,
2010, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective in ensuring that (1) information to be disclosed in reports we file under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the rules and forms promulgated under the Exchange Act and (2) information required to be disclosed in reports filed
under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the principal executive officer and principal financial officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s last fiscal quarter that have materially
affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II.     OTHER INFORMATION
 
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
 
There are certain inherent risks which will have an effect on the Company’s development in the future and some of these risk factors are noted below but are not all encompassing
since there may be others unknown to management at the present time which might have an impact in the future on the development of the Company.

WE WILL NEED ADDITIONAL FINANCING TO SUPPORT OUR TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT, ACQUIRING OR INVESTING IN NEW BUSINESSES AND
ONGOING OPERATIONS.
 
The Company business will need to obtain additional financing in order to continue our current technology development, acquire businesses and fund ongoing operations. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to secure funding, or that if such funding is available, the terms or conditions would be acceptable to us. If the Company is unable to
obtain additional financing, we may need to restructure our operations, divest all or a portion of our business or file for bankruptcy.

 
Our recent efforts to generate additional liquidity, including through sales of our common stock, are described in more detail in the financial statement notes set forth in this report.

 
If we raise additional capital through borrowing or other debt financing, we will incur substantial interest expense. Sales of additional equity securities will dilute on a pro rata
basis the percentage ownership of all holders of common stock. When we raise more equity capital in the future, it will result in substantial dilution to our current stockholders.

THE SALE OF A SIGNIFICANT NUMBER OF OUR SHARES OF COMMON STOCK COULD DEPRESS THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK.
 
Sales or issuances of a large number of shares of common stock in the public market or the perception that sales may occur could cause the market price of our common stock to
decline. As of December 31, 2010, there were 38.4 million shares of common stock issued and outstanding. Significant shares of common stock are held by our principal
shareholders, other Company insiders and other large shareholders. As “affiliates” (as defined under Rule 144 of the Securities Act (“Rule 144”)) of the Company, our principal
shareholders, other Company insiders and other large shareholders may only sell their shares of common stock in the public market pursuant to an effective registration statement
or in compliance with Rule 144.
 
Some of the present shareholders have acquired shares at prices as low as $0.001 per share, whereas other shareholders have purchased their shares at prices ranging from $0.15 to
$0.75 per share.

WE MAY ENGAGE IN ACQUISITIONS, MERGERS, STRATEGIC ALLIANCES, JOINT VENTURES AND DIVESTITURES THAT COULD RESULT IN FINANCIAL
RESULTS THAT ARE DIFFERENT THAN EXPECTED. 
 
In the normal course of business, we engage in discussions relating to possible acquisitions, equity investments, mergers, strategic alliances, joint ventures and divestitures. Such
transactions are accompanied by a number of risks, including:

- Use of significant amounts of cash,

- Potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities on potentially unfavorable terms,

- Incurrence of debt on potentially unfavorable terms as well as impairment expenses related to goodwill and amortization expenses related to other intangible assets, and

- The possibility that we may pay too much cash or issue too many of our shares as the purchase price for an acquisition relative to the economic benefits that we ultimately
derive from such acquisition.

- The process of integrating any acquisition may create unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditures. The areas where we may face difficulties include:

- Diversion of management time, during the period of negotiation through closing and after closing, from its focus on operating the businesses to issues of integration,

- Decline in employee morale and retention issues resulting from changes in compensation, reporting relationships, future prospects or the direction of the business,

- The need to integrate each Company's accounting, management information, human resource and other administrative systems to permit effective management, and the lack
of control if such integration is delayed or not implemented,
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- The need to implement controls, procedures and policies appropriate for a public Company that may not have been in place in private companies, prior to acquisition,

- The need to incorporate acquired technology, content or rights into our products and any expenses related to such integration, and

- The need to successfully develop any acquired in-process technology to realize any value capitalized as intangible assets.

From time to time, we have also engaged in discussions with candidates regarding the potential acquisitions of our product lines, technologies and businesses. If a divestiture such
as this does occur, we cannot be certain that our business, operating results and financial condition will not be materially and adversely affected. A successful divestiture depends
on various factors, including our ability to:

- Effectively transfer liabilities, contracts, facilities and employees to any purchaser,

- Identify and separate the intellectual property to be divested from the intellectual property that we wish to retain,

- Reduce fixed costs previously associated with the divested assets or business, and

- Collect the proceeds from any divestitures.

In addition, if customers of the divested business do not receive the same level of service from the new owners, this may adversely affect our other businesses to the extent that
these customers also purchase other products offered by us. All of these efforts require varying levels of management resources, which may divert our attention from other
business operations.

If we do not realize the expected benefits or synergies of any divestiture transaction, our consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash flows and stock price could be
negatively impacted.

WE MAY INCUR LOSSES IN THE FUTURE.

We have experienced net losses since inception. There can be no assurance that we will achieve or maintain profitability.
 
THE MARKET PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK MAY BE VOLATILE.
 
The market price of our common stock has been and is likely in the future to be volatile. Our common stock price may fluctuate in response to factors such as:
 
 • Announcements by us regarding liquidity, significant acquisitions, equity investments and divestitures, strategic relationships, addition or loss of significant

customers and contracts, capital expenditure commitments, loan, note payable and agreement defaults, loss of our subsidiaries and impairment of assets,
 • Issuance of convertible or equity securities for general or merger and acquisition purposes,
 • Issuance or repayment of debt, accounts payable or convertible debt for general or merger and acquisition purposes,
 • Sale of a significant number of our common stock by shareholders,
 • General market and economic conditions,
 • Quarterly variations in our operating results,
 • Investor relation activities,
 • Announcements of technological innovations,
 • New product introductions by us or our competitors,
 • Competitive activities, and
 • Additions or departures of key personnel.
 
These broad market and industry factors may have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock, regardless of our actual operating performance. These
factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
FUTURE ISSUANCE OF STOCK OPTIONS, WARRANTS AND /OR RIGHTS MAY HAVE A DILUTING FACTOR ON EXISTING AND FUTURE SHAREHOLDERS.

 
The grant and exercise of stock options, warrants or rights to be issued in the future will likely result in a dilution of the value of the Company’s common shares for all
shareholders.  The Company has established a Combined Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan and may in the future issue further stock options to officers, directors and
consultants which will dilute the interest of the existing and future shareholders.  Moreover, the Company may seek authorization to increase the number of its authorized shares
and sell additional securities and/or rights to purchase such securities at any time in the future.  Dilution of the value of the common shares will likely result from such sales, which
in turn could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.
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OUR MANAGEMENT HAS SUBSTANTIAL INFLUENCE OVER OUR COMPANY.
 
As of December 31, 2010, Mr. Erickson and his immediate family members, either directly or indirectly, own or control 6,506,473 shares as of the filing date or approximately
16.9% of our common stock. These Controlling Shareholders have stated in a Schedule 13D that they may be deemed to constitute a “group” for the purposes of Rule 13d-3 under
the Exchange Act. Mr. Ronald P. Erickson, our Chief Executive officer, controls each of our Controlling Shareholders.

 
This group, could cause a change of control of our board of directors, if in combination with another large shareholder elects candidates of their choice to the board at a shareholder
meeting, and approve or disapprove any matter requiring stockholder approval, regardless of how our other shareholders may vote. Further, under Nevada law, the group could
have a significant influence over our affairs, if in combination with another large shareholder, including the power to cause, delay or prevent a change in control or sale of the
Company, which in turn could adversely affect the market price of our common stock. 
 
TRADING IN THE COMPANY’S STOCK MAY BE RESTRICTED BY BLUE SKY ELIGIBILITY AND THE SEC’S PENNY STOCK REGULATIONS.
 
The SEC has adopted regulations which generally define "penny stock" to be any equity security that has a market price (as defined) less than $5.00 per share or an exercise price
of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions.  Under the penny stock rules, additional sales practice requirements are imposed on broker-dealers who sell to persons
other than established customers and "accredited investors."  The term "accredited investor" refers generally to institutions with assets in excess of $5,000,000 or individuals with a
net worth in excess of $1,000,000 or annual income exceeding $200,000 or $300,000 jointly with their spouse.  The penny stock rules require a broker-dealer, prior to a transaction
in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from the rules, to deliver a standardized risk disclosure document in a form prepared by the SEC which provides information about penny
stocks and the nature and level of risks in the penny stock market.  The broker-dealer also must provide the customer with current bid and offer quotations for the penny stock, the
compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson in the transaction, and monthly account statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer's
account.  The bid and offer quotations, and the broker-dealer and salesperson compensation information, must be given to the customer orally or in writing prior to effecting the
transaction and must be given to the customer in writing before or with the customer's confirmation.  In addition, the penny stock rules require that prior to a transaction in a penny
stock not otherwise exempt from these rules, the broker-dealer must make a special written determination that the penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser and
receive the purchaser's written agreement to the transaction.  These disclosure requirements may have the effect of reducing the level of trading activity in the secondary market for
the stock that is subject to broker-dealers to trade in the Company’s securities.  

The penny stock rules may discourage investor interest in and limit the marketability of, the Company’s common stock.
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

Some of the directors of the Company are also directors and officers of other companies, and conflicts of interest may arise between their duties as directors of the Company and as
directors and officers of other companies. These factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

WE ARE DEPENDENT ON KEY PERSONNEL.

Our success depends to a significant degree upon the continued contributions of key management and other personnel, some of whom could be difficult to replace. We do not
maintain key man life insurance covering certain of our officers. Our success will depend on the performance of our officers, our ability to retain and motivate our officers, our
ability to integrate new officers into our operations and the ability of all personnel to work together effectively as a team. Our failure to retain and recruit officers and other key
personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

WE HAVE LIMITED INSURANCE.
 
We have limited director and officer insurance and commercial insurance policies. Any significant claims would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations. 

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On November 17, 2010, the Company issued 20,000 shares of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock to Robert Jones for advisory services. The shares were valued at
$.24 per share, the closing price on November 17, 2010.
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On December 23, 2010, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“Agreement”) with Seaside pursuant to which Seaside agreed to purchase restricted shares of
the Company’s common stock from time to time over a 12-month period, provided that certain conditions are met.
 
Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company has the right to sell and issue to Seaside restricted shares of the Company’s common stock over a 12-month period commencing
on the closing date. Visualant will be entitled to sell shares each month during the following 12 months, subject to certain conditions and limitations.  With respect to each
subsequent closing, Visualant will not be obligated to sell any of its common stock to Seaside at a price lower than $0.25 per share, and Seaside’s beneficial ownership of the
Company’s common stock will not exceed 4.99%. Seaside is not permitted to short sale the Company’s common stock.
 
Visualant paid Seaside’s legal fees and expenses in the amount of $25,000 for the initial closing, and agreed to pay $2,500 for each subsequent closing.  Visualant also has agreed
to pay 7.0% in finder’s fees (to be paid in connection with each draw down) and issue 10,113 common stock warrants exercisable at $0.21395 per share.
 
The Agreement may be terminated by Seaside (i) upon written notice to the Company if the initial closing has not been consummated on or before December 31, 2010; or (ii) upon
written notice to the Company, if at any time prior to the final subsequent closing the Company consummates a financing to which Seaside is not a party.
 
The Agreement also contains certain representations and warranties of Visualant and Seaside, including customary investment-related representations provided by Seaside, as well
as acknowledgements by Seaside that it has reviewed certain disclosures of the Company (including the periodic reports that the Company has filed with the SEC) and that the
Company’s issuance of the shares has not been registered with the SEC or qualified under any state securities laws.  Visualant provided customary representations regarding,
among other things, its organization, capital structure, subsidiaries, disclosure reports, absence of certain legal or governmental proceedings, financial statements, tax matters,
insurance matters, real property and other assets, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  Seaside’s representations and warranties are qualified in their entirety (to
the extent applicable) by the Company’s disclosures in the reports it files with the SEC.  Visualant also delivered confidential disclosure schedules qualifying certain of its
representations and warranties in connection with executing and delivering the Agreement.
 
As of December 31, 2010 and February 11, 2011, the Company sold to Seaside 144,471 shares at a purchase price of $.214 per share, or an aggregate price of $30,910.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

The exhibits required to be filed herewith by Item 601 of Regulation S-K, as described in the following index of exhibits, are attached hereto unless otherwise indicated as being
incorporated by reference, as follows:

(a)        Exhibits
 
10.1 Letter of Intent dated October 1, 2010 by and between Visualant, Inc. and the RATLab LLC. (1)
  
10.2 Extension to Letter of Intent dated November 28, 2010 by and between Visualant, Inc. and the RATLab LLC. (2)
 
10.3 Securities Purchase Agreement dated December 23, 2010 by and between Visualant, Inc. and Seaside 88 Advisors LLC. (3)

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer (3)
 
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer (3)
 
32 Section 906 Certifications
__________________
 
(1) Attached as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K dated October 1, 2010 and filed with the SEC on October 8, 2010.
(2) Attached as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K dated November 28, 2010 and filed with the SEC on December 2, 2010.
(3) Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 
VISUALANT, INCORPORATED

(Registrant)

    
Date: February 11, 2011 By: /s/ Ronald P. Erickson  
  Ronald P. Erickson  
  Chief Executive Officer, President, and Director  
   (Principal Executive Officer)  
 
    
Date: February 11, 2011 By: /s/ Mark Scott  
  Mark Scott  
  Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer  
  ( Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
25



 

EXHIBIT INDEX
 
Exhibit No. Description
  
10.3 Securities Purchase Agreement dated December 23, 2010 by and between Visualant, Inc. and Seaside 88 Advisors LLC.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 

 
 26



EXHIBIT 10.3
 
 
 

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
 

This Securities Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of December 23, 2010, is by and between Visualant, Incorporated, a Nevada corporation (the
“Company”), and the purchaser identified on the signature page hereto (the “Purchaser”).
 

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act (as defined below), and Rule 506
promulgated thereunder, the Company desires to issue and sell to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser desires to purchase from the Company, securities of the Company as more fully
described in this Agreement.
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Purchaser agree as follows:
 

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS

 
1.1           Definitions.  In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, for all purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings set forth in

this Section 1.1:
 

“Acquiring Person” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.5.
 

“Action” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(j).
 

“Affiliate” means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under common control with a Person,
as such terms are used in and construed under Rule 405 under the Securities Act.

 
“Agreement” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the introduction, as the same may be amended from time to time.

 
“BHCA” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(mm).

 
“Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Company.

 
“Business Day” means any day except any Saturday, any Sunday, any day which is a federal legal holiday in the United States or any day on which banking

institutions in the State of New York are authorized or required by law or other governmental action to close.
 

“Closing” means the Initial Closing and each Subsequent Closing.
 

“Closing Dates” means the Initial Closing Date and each Subsequent Closing Date.
 

“Commission” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
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“Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share, and any other class of securities into which such securities may hereafter
be reclassified or changed.

 
“Common Stock Equivalents” means any securities of the Company or the Subsidiaries which would entitle the holder thereof to acquire at any time Common

Stock, including, without limitation, any debt, preferred stock, right, option, warrant or other instrument that is at any time convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable
for, or otherwise entitles the holder thereof to receive, Common Stock.

 
“Company” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the introduction.

 
“Company Counsel” means Monahan & Biagi, PLLC or other counsel (including in-house counsel of the Company) reasonably acceptable to Purchaser.

 
“Disclosure Schedules” means those schedules delivered in connection with Section 3.1.

 
 “Evaluation Date” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(r).

 
“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Federal Reserve” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(mm).
 

“Floor” shall mean $0.25 (as the same may be proportionately adjusted in respect of any stock split, stock dividend, combination, recapitalization or the like with
respect to the Common Stock).

 
“GAAP” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(h).

 
“Indebtedness” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(aa).

 
“Initial Closing” means the closing of the purchase and sale of the Common Stock pursuant to Section 2.1.

 
“Initial Closing Date” means the date when all of the Transaction Documents and all other documents required to be executed and delivered in connection with the

Initial Closing pursuant this Agreement have been executed and delivered by the applicable parties thereto, and all conditions precedent to the Purchaser’s obligations to
purchase the Shares, and the Company’s obligations to issue and deliver the Shares, have been satisfied or waived with respect to the Initial Closing.

 
“Intellectual Property Rights” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(o).
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“Legend Removal Date” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.1(c).
 

“Liens” means a lien, charge, security interest, encumbrance, right of first refusal, preemptive right or other restriction.
 

“Material Adverse Effect” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.1(b).
 

“Material Permits” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(m).
 

“Money Laundering Laws” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(nn).
 

“OFAC” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(kk).
 

“Per Share Purchase Price” shall be an amount equal to the lower of (a) the volume weighted average of actual trading prices (measured in hundredths of cents) of
the Common Stock for the ten (10) consecutive Trading Days immediately prior to a Closing Date, as reported by Bloomberg Financial Markets, multiplied by 0.60 and (b)
the volume weighted average of actual trading prices (measured in hundredths of cents) of the Common Stock for the Trading Day immediately prior to a Closing Date, as
reported by Bloomberg Financial Markets, multiplied by 0.64.

 
“Person” means an individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, limited liability company, joint stock

company, government (or an agency or subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind.
 

“Public Information Failure” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.2(b).
 

“Public Information Failure Payments” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.2(b).
 

“Purchaser” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the introduction.
 

“Purchaser Party” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.8.
 

“Required Approvals” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(e).
 

“Rule 144” means Rule 144 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, as such rule may be amended from time to time, or any similar rule or
regulation hereafter adopted by the Commission having substantially the same effect as such rule.
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“Rule 424” means Rule 424 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, as such rule may be amended or interpreted from time to time, or any
similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the Commission having substantially the same purpose and effect as such rule.

 
“SEC Reports” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(h).

 
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

 
“Share Amount” means the number of Shares to be purchased at a Closing, such number to be equal to ten percent (10%) of the total number of shares of Common

Stock traded during normal hours during the twenty (20) Trading Days immediately preceding such Closing, as reported by Bloomberg Financial Markets.
 

“Share Limit” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 2.5(b).
 

“Shares” means the shares of Common Stock issued or issuable to the Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement (as the same may be proportionately adjusted in
respect of any stock split, stock dividend, combination, recapitalization or the like with respect to the Common Stock).

 
“Short Sales” means all “short sales” as defined in Rule 200 of Regulation SHO under the Exchange Act (but shall not be deemed to include the location and/or

reservation of borrowable shares of Common Stock). 
 

“Subscription Amount” means the amount to be paid for Shares at a Closing by the Purchaser, calculated as the product of (a) the Share Amount for such Closing
and (b) the Per Share Purchase Price for such Closing.

 
“Subsequent Closing” means each closing of the purchase and sale of the Common Stock pursuant to Section 2.2.

 
“Subsequent Closing Date” means every day that is one (1) month subsequent to the previous Closing Date (or, if such day is not a Trading Day, then the first day

thereafter that is a Trading Day) commencing one month after the Initial Closing Date and ending on or about the date that is approximately eleven (11) months subsequent
to the Initial Closing Date, or such later dates when all conditions precedent to the Purchaser’s obligations to purchase the Shares, and the Company’s obligations to issue
and deliver the Shares, have been satisfied or waived with respect to the Subsequent Closing, unless such Subsequent Closing is cancelled pursuant to Section 2.5 or this
Agreement is earlier terminated pursuant to the terms hereof.

 
“Subsidiary” means any subsidiary of the Company as set forth on Schedule 3.1(a) and shall, where applicable, also include any direct or indirect subsidiary of the

Company formed or acquired after the date hereof.
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“Trading Day” means a day on which the principal Trading Market for the Common Stock is open for trading.
 

“Trading Market” means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted for trading on the date in question: the New
York Stock Exchange, the NYSE Alternext Exchange, the NYSE Amex, the Nasdaq Capital Market, the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select Market or the
OTC Bulletin Board (or any successors to any of the foregoing).

 
“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement and all schedules hereto and any other documents or agreements executed in connection with the transactions

contemplated hereunder.
 

“Transfer Agent” means Empire Stock Transfer, Inc., the current transfer agent of the Company, with a mailing address of 1859 Whitney Mesa Drive, Henderson,
NV 89014 and a facsimile number of (702) 974-1444, and any successor transfer agent of the Company.

 
ARTICLE II.

PURCHASE AND SALE
 

2 . 1           Initial Closing.  On the Initial Closing Date, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, substantially concurrent with the execution and
delivery of this Agreement by the parties hereto, the Company agrees to sell, and the Purchaser agrees to purchase, the Share Amount at the Per Share Purchase Price as calculated
for the Initial Closing. The Purchaser shall deliver to the Company, via wire transfer of immediately available funds, the Subscription Amount for the Initial Closing, and the
Company shall deliver to the Purchaser the Share Amount for the Initial Closing, and the Company and the Purchaser shall deliver the other items set forth in Section 2.3
deliverable at the Initial Closing.  Upon satisfaction or waiver of the covenants and conditions set forth in Sections 2.3, 2.4 and 2.5, the Initial Closing shall occur on the Initial
Closing Date electronically or at such physical location as the parties shall mutually agree.
 

2 . 2           Subsequent Closings. On each Subsequent Closing Date, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, the Company agrees to sell, and the
Purchaser agrees to purchase, the Share Amount (subject to Section 2.5(b) and (c)) at the Per Share Purchase Price as calculated for such Subsequent Closing.  The Purchaser shall
deliver to the Company, via wire transfer of immediately available funds, the Subscription Amount for such Subsequent Closing, and the Company shall deliver to the Purchaser
the Share Amount for such Subsequent Closing, and the Company and the Purchaser shall deliver the other items set forth in Section 2.3 deliverable at such Subsequent
Closing.  Upon satisfaction or waiver of the covenants and conditions set forth in Sections 2.3, 2.4 and 2.5, each Subsequent Closing shall occur on the applicable Subsequent
Closing Date electronically or at such physical location as the parties shall mutually agree.
 

2.3           Deliveries.
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(a)           On or prior to each Closing Date, the Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Purchaser the following:
 

(i)           solely on the Initial Closing Date, this Agreement duly executed by the Company;
 

(ii)           solely on the Initial Closing Date, the opinion of Company Counsel, substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto;
 

(iii)           an officer’s certificate of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer in substantially the form of Exhibit B attached
hereto; and

 
(iv)           subject to Section 2.5, a copy of the irrevocable instructions to the Transfer Agent instructing the Transfer Agent to deliver, on an expedited

basis, a certificate evidencing the applicable Share Amount purchased by the Purchaser at such Closing, registered in the name of the Purchaser.
 

(b)           On or prior to each Closing Date, the Purchaser shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Company the following:
 

(i)           solely on the Initial Closing Date, this Agreement duly executed by the Purchaser; and
 

(ii)           the applicable Subscription Amount by wire transfer to the account as specified in writing by the Company, and in each case less the amount
due the Purchaser for reimbursement of its expenses pursuant to Section 5.2 hereof.

 
2.4           Closing Conditions.

 
(a)           The obligations of the Company hereunder in connection with each Closing are subject to the following conditions being met:

 
(i)           the accuracy on the Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the Purchaser contained herein (unless made as of a specific date, in

which case the representations and warranties shall be true as of such specified date);
 

(ii)           all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Purchaser required to be performed at or prior to the Closing Date shall have been performed;
 

(iii)           the delivery by the Purchaser of the items set forth in Section 2.3(b) of this Agreement; and
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(iv)           with respect to any Subsequent Closing, the Per Share Purchase Price shall equal or exceed the Floor, as set forth in Section 2.5(a) of this
Agreement.

 
(b)           The obligations of the Purchaser hereunder in connection with the Closing are subject to the following conditions being met:

 
(i)           the accuracy on the Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the Company contained herein (unless made as of a specific date, in

which case the representations and warranties shall be true as of such specified date);
 

(ii)           all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Company required to be performed at or prior to the Closing Date shall have been performed;
 

(iii)           the delivery by the Company of the items set forth in Section 2.3(a) of this Agreement;
 

(iv)           with respect to any Subsequent Closing, the Per Share Purchase Price shall equal or exceed the Floor, as set forth in Section 2.5(a) of this
Agreement;

 
(v)           there shall have been no Material Adverse Effect with respect to the Company since the date hereof;

 
(vi)           the Purchaser shall have completed its due diligence of the Company to its own satisfaction; and

 
(vii)           from the date hereof to each Closing Date, trading in the Common Stock shall not have been suspended by the Commission or the Company’s

principal Trading Market (except for any suspension of trading of limited duration agreed to by the Company, which suspension shall be terminated prior to the
Closing), and, at any time prior to the Closing Date, trading in securities generally as reported by Bloomberg L.P. shall not have been suspended or limited, or
minimum prices shall not have been established on securities whose trades are reported by such service, or on any Trading Market, nor shall a banking moratorium
have been declared either by the United States or New York State authorities nor shall there have occurred any material outbreak or escalation of hostilities or
other national or international calamity of such magnitude in its effect on, or any material adverse change in, any financial market which, in each case, in the
reasonable judgment of the Purchaser, makes it impracticable or inadvisable to purchase the Shares at the Closing.

 
2.5           The Floor; Limitation on Purchases.

 
(a)            In the event that the Per Share Purchase Price does not equal or exceed the Floor, as calculated with respect to any Closing Date, then such Closing will

not occur.  In each such event, there will be one fewer Closing pursuant to this Agreement.
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The failure to have a Closing due to failure to meet the Floor will not impact any other Closing.
 

(b)           If, for any Subsequent Closing, the Share Amount to be purchased at such Closing is greater than two times the Share Amount purchased by the
Purchaser at the immediately preceding Subsequent Closing (the “Share Limit”), then the Purchaser shall have the option to reduce the number of Shares purchased at such
Subsequent Closing such that the Share Amount purchasable at such Closing is an amount equal to (as near as possible) the Share Limit.

 
(c)           In no event will any Subsequent Closing occur if, as a result of the Purchaser’s purchase of Shares at such Subsequent Closing, the Purchaser’s beneficial

ownership of the Common Stock, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3 promulgated by the Commission, will exceed 4.99%.  In such event, the Purchaser will purchase
only that number of Shares that will cause its beneficial ownership, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3, to remain below 4.99%.

 
ARTICLE III.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
 

3.1           Representations and Warranties of the Company. Except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedules, which Disclosure Schedules shall be deemed a part hereof and
shall qualify any representation or warranty made herein to the extent of the disclosure contained in the corresponding section of the Disclosure Schedules, the Company hereby
makes the following representations and warranties to the Purchaser:
 

( a )           Subsidiaries.  All of the direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Company are set forth on Schedule 3.1(a).  The Company owns, directly or indirectly, all
of the capital stock or other equity interests of each Subsidiary free and clear of any Liens, and all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of each Subsidiary
are validly issued and are fully paid, non-assessable and free of preemptive and similar rights to subscribe for or purchase securities.  If the Company has no subsidiaries, all
other references to the Subsidiaries or any of them in the Transaction Documents shall be disregarded.

 
(b)           Organization and Qualification.  The Company and each of the Subsidiaries is an entity duly incorporated or otherwise organized, validly existing and in

good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or organization, with the requisite power and authority to own and use its properties and assets and to
carry on its business as currently conducted.  Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is in violation or default of any of the provisions of its respective certificate or
articles of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents.  Each of the Company and the Subsidiaries is duly qualified to conduct business and is in
good standing as a foreign corporation or other entity in each jurisdiction in which the nature of the business conducted or property owned by it makes such qualification
necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing, as the case may be, could not result in or have, or reasonably be expected to result in or have: (i) a
material adverse effect on the legality, validity or enforceability of any Transaction Document, (ii) a material adverse effect on the results of operations, assets, business,
prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (iii) a material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to perform
in any material respect on a timely basis its obligations under any Transaction Document (any of (i), (ii) or (iii), a “Material Adverse Effect”) and no Action has been
instituted in any such jurisdiction revoking, limiting or curtailing or seeking to revoke, limit or curtail such power and authority or qualification.
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( c )           Authorization; Enforcement.  The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions
contemplated by each of the Transaction Documents and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder.  The execution and delivery of each of the
Transaction Documents by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including the issuance and sale of the Shares,
have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Company and no further action is required by the Company, the Board of Directors or the Company’s
stockholders in connection therewith other than in connection with the Required Approvals.  Each Transaction Document to which it is a party has been (or upon delivery
will have been) duly executed by the Company and, when delivered in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, will constitute the valid and binding obligation of the
Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except: (i) as limited by general equitable principles and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of
specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies and (iii) insofar as indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited by applicable law.

 
( d )           No Conflicts.  The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Transaction Documents, the issuance and sale of the Shares and the

consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby to which it is a party do not and will not: (i) conflict with or violate any provision of the
Company’s or any Subsidiary’s certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents, (ii) conflict with, or constitute a default (or an
event that with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of the Company or any
Subsidiary, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation (with or without notice, lapse of time or both) of, any agreement, credit
facility, debt or other instrument (evidencing a Company or Subsidiary debt or otherwise) or other understanding to which the Company or any Subsidiary is a party or by
which any property or asset of the Company or any Subsidiary is bound or affected, or (iii) subject to the Required Approvals, conflict with or result in a violation of any
law, rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction, decree or other restriction of any court or governmental authority to which the Company or a Subsidiary is subject
(including federal and state securities laws and regulations), or by which any property or asset of the Company or a Subsidiary is bound or affected; except in the case of
each of clauses (ii) and (iii), such as could not result in or have, or reasonably be expected to result in or have, a Material Adverse Effect.
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(e)           Filings, Consents and Approvals.  The Company is not required to obtain any consent, waiver, authorization or order of, give any notice to, or make any
filing or registration with, any court or other federal, state, local or other governmental authority or other Person in connection with the execution, delivery and performance
by the Company of the Transaction Documents, other than: (i) the filings required pursuant to Section 4.4 of this Agreement, and (ii) the filing of Form D with the
Commission and such filings as are required to be made under applicable state securities laws (collectively, the “Required Approvals”).

 
(f)           Issuance of the Shares.  The Shares are duly authorized and, when issued and paid for in accordance with the applicable Transaction Documents, will be

duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all Liens imposed by the Company other than restrictions on transfer provided for in the Transaction
Documents.

 
( g )           Capitalization.  The capitalization of the Company is as set forth on Schedule 3.1(g), which Schedule 3.1(g) shall also include the number of shares of

Common Stock owned beneficially, and of record, by Affiliates of the Company as of the date hereof.  The Company has not issued any capital stock since its most
recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act, other than (i) pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options under the Company’s stock option plans, (ii) the
issuance of shares of Common Stock to employees pursuant to the Company’s employee stock purchase plans and (iii) the issuance of securities pursuant to the conversion
and/or exercise of Common Stock Equivalents outstanding as of the date of the most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act.  No Person has any right of first
refusal, preemptive right, right of participation, or any similar right to participate in the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents.  Except as a result of the
purchase and sale of the Shares or as set forth on Schedule 3.1(g), there are no outstanding options, warrants, scrip rights to subscribe to, calls or commitments of any
character whatsoever relating to, or securities, rights or obligations convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or giving any Person any right to subscribe for or
acquire any shares of Common Stock, or contracts, commitments, understandings or arrangements by which the Company or any Subsidiary is or may become bound to
issue additional shares of Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents.  The issuance and sale of the Shares will not obligate the Company to issue shares of Common
Stock or other securities to any Person (other than the Purchaser) and will not result in a right of any holder of Company securities to adjust the exercise, conversion,
exchange or reset price under any of such securities.  All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, have
been issued in compliance with all federal and state securities laws, and none of such outstanding shares was issued in violation of any preemptive rights or similar rights to
subscribe for or purchase securities.  No further approval or authorization of any stockholder, the Board of Directors or others is required for the issuance and sale of the
Shares.  There are no stockholders agreements, voting agreements or other similar agreements with respect to the Company’s capital stock to which the Company is a party
or, to the knowledge of the Company, between or among any of the Company’s stockholders.
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( h )           SEC Reports; Financial Statements. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.1(h),the Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other
documents required to be filed by the Company under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, including pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) thereof, for the two years
preceding the date hereof (or such shorter period as the Company was required by law or regulation to file such material) (the foregoing materials, including the exhibits
thereto and documents incorporated by reference therein, being collectively referred to herein as the “SEC Reports”) on a timely basis or has received a valid extension of
such time of filing and has filed any such SEC Reports prior to the expiration of any such extension.  As of their respective dates, the SEC Reports complied in all material
respects with the requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, as applicable, and none of the SEC Reports, when filed, contained any untrue statement of a
material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading.  The Company has never been an issuer subject to Rule 144(i) under the Securities Act. The financial statements of the Company
included in the SEC Reports comply in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the rules and regulations of the Commission with respect thereto
as in effect at the time of filing.  Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles applied on a
consistent basis during the periods involved (“GAAP”), except as may be otherwise specified in such financial statements or the notes thereto and except that unaudited
financial statements may not contain all footnotes required by GAAP, and fairly present in all material respects the financial position of the Company and its consolidated
Subsidiaries as of and for the dates thereof and the results of operations and cash flows for the periods then ended, subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal,
immaterial, year-end audit adjustments.

 
( i )           Material Changes; Undisclosed Events, Liabilities or Developments.  Since the date of the latest audited financial statements included within the SEC

Reports, except as specifically disclosed in a subsequent SEC Report filed prior to the date hereof: (i) there has been no event, occurrence or development that has had or
that could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) the Company has not incurred any liabilities (contingent or otherwise) other than (A) trade
payables and accrued expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and (B) liabilities not required to be reflected in the Company’s
financial statements pursuant to GAAP or disclosed in filings made with the Commission, (iii) the Company has not altered its method of accounting, (iv) the Company has
not declared or made any dividend or distribution of cash or other property to its stockholders or purchased, redeemed or made any agreements to purchase or redeem any
shares of its capital stock and (v) the Company has not issued any equity securities to any officer, director or Affiliate, except pursuant to existing Company stock option
plans or as set forth on Schedule 3.1(i).  The Company does not have pending before the Commission any request for confidential treatment of information.  Except for the
issuance of the Shares contemplated by this Agreement or as set forth on Schedule 3.1(i), no event, liability, fact, circumstance, occurrence or development has occurred or
exists, or is reasonably expected to occur or exist, with respect to the Company or its Subsidiaries or their respective business, properties, operations, assets or financial
condition, that would be required to be disclosed by the Company under applicable securities laws at the time this representation is made or deemed made that has not been
publicly disclosed at least one (1) Trading Day prior to the date that this representation is made.
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( j )           Litigation.  There is no action, claim, suit, inquiry, notice of violation, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the knowledge of the Company,
threatened against or affecting the Company, any Subsidiary or any of their respective properties before or by any court, arbitrator, governmental or administrative agency
or regulatory authority (federal, state, county, local or foreign) (collectively, an “ Action”) which (i) adversely affects or challenges the legality, validity or enforceability of
any of the Transaction Documents or the Shares or (ii) could, if there were an unfavorable decision, result in or have, or reasonably be expected to result in or have, a
Material Adverse Effect.  Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary, nor any director or officer thereof, is or has been the subject of any Action involving a claim of
violation of or liability under federal or state securities laws or a claim of breach of fiduciary duty.  There has not been, and to the knowledge of the Company, there is not
pending or contemplated, any investigation by the Commission involving the Company or any current or former director or officer of the Company.  The Commission has
not issued any stop order or other order suspending the effectiveness of any registration statement filed by the Company or any Subsidiary under the Exchange Act or the
Securities Act.

 
( k )           Labor Relations.  No material labor dispute exists or, to the knowledge of the Company, is imminent with respect to any of the employees of the

Company, which could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.  None of the Company’s or its Subsidiaries’ employees is a member of a union that
relates to such employee’s relationship with the Company or such Subsidiary, and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to a collective bargaining
agreement, and the Company and its Subsidiaries believe that their relationships with their employees are good.  No executive officer, to the knowledge of the Company, is,
or is now expected to be, in violation of any material term of any employment contract, confidentiality, disclosure or proprietary information agreement or non-competition
agreement, or any other contract or agreement or any restrictive covenant in favor of any third party, and the continued employment of each such executive officer does not
subject the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to any liability with respect to any of the foregoing matters.  The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance with all
U.S. federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations relating to employment and employment practices, terms and conditions of employment and wages and hours,
except where the failure to be in compliance could not, individually or in the aggregate, result in or have, or reasonably be expected to result in or have, a Material Adverse
Effect.

 
(l)           Compliance.  Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary: (i) is in default under or in violation of (and no event has occurred that has not been waived that,

with notice or lapse of time or both, would result in a default by the Company or any Subsidiary under), nor has the Company or any Subsidiary received notice of a claim
that it is in default under or that it is in violation of, any indenture, loan or credit agreement or any other agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it or any
of its properties is bound (whether or not such default or violation has been waived), (ii) is in violation of any judgment, decree, or order of any court, arbitrator or
governmental body or (iii) to the Company’s knowledge, is or has been in violation of any statute, rule, ordinance or regulation of any governmental authority, including
without limitation all foreign, federal, state and local laws relating to taxes, environmental protection, occupational health and safety, product quality and safety and
employment and labor matters, except in each case as could not result in or have, or reasonably be expected to result in or have, a Material Adverse Effect.
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(m)           Regulatory Permits.  The Company and the Subsidiaries possess all certificates, authorizations and permits issued by the appropriate federal, state, local
or foreign regulatory authorities necessary to conduct their respective businesses as described in the SEC Reports, except where the failure to possess such permits could not
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect (“Material Permits”), and neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has received any notice of proceedings
relating to the revocation or modification of any Material Permit.

 
( n )           Title to Assets.  Except as set forth on Schedule 3.1(n), the Company and the Subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee simple to all real

property owned by them and good and marketable title in all personal property owned by them that is material to the business of the Company and the Subsidiaries, in each
case free and clear of all Liens, except for Liens as do not materially affect the value of such property and do not materially interfere with the use made and proposed to be
made of such property by the Company and the Subsidiaries and Liens for the payment of federal, state or other taxes, the payment of which is neither delinquent nor
subject to penalties.  Any real property and facilities held under lease by the Company and the Subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases
with which the Company and the Subsidiaries are in compliance.

 
( o )           Patents and Trademarks.  The Company and the Subsidiaries have, or have rights to use, all patents, patent applications, trademarks, trademark

applications, service marks, trade names, trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, licenses and other intellectual property rights and similar rights as described in the SEC
Reports as necessary or material for use in connection with their respective businesses and which the failure to so have could have a Material Adverse Effect (collectively,
the “Intellectual Property Rights”).  None of, and neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has received a notice (written or otherwise) that any of, the Intellectual Property
Rights has expired, terminated or been abandoned, or is expected to expire or terminate or be abandoned, within two (2) years from the date of this Agreement.  Neither the
Company nor any Subsidiary has received, since the date of the latest audited financial statements included within the SEC Reports, a written notice of a claim or otherwise
has any knowledge that the Intellectual Property Rights violate or infringe upon the rights of any Person, except as would not have a Material Adverse Effect.  To the
knowledge of the Company, all such Intellectual Property Rights are enforceable and there is no existing infringement by another Person of any of the Intellectual Property
Rights.  The Company and its Subsidiaries have taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of all of their intellectual properties,
except where failure to do so could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
 
 

13



 
 
 

( p )           Insurance.  The Company and the Subsidiaries are insured by insurers of recognized financial responsibility against such losses and risks and in such
amounts as are prudent and customary in the businesses in which the Company and the Subsidiaries are engaged, including, but not limited to, directors and officers
insurance coverage at least equal to the aggregate Subscription Amount from all Closings.  Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has any reason to believe that it will
not be able to renew its existing insurance coverage as and when such coverage expires or to obtain similar coverage from similar insurers as may be necessary to continue
its business without a significant increase in cost.

 
( q )           Transactions With Affiliates and Employees.  Except as set forth in the SEC Reports, none of the officers or directors of the Company and, to the

knowledge of the Company, none of the employees of the Company is presently a party to any transaction with the Company or any Subsidiary (other than for services as
employees, officers and directors), including any contract, agreement or other arrangement providing for the furnishing of services to or by, providing for rental of real or
personal property to or from, or otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director or such employee or, to the knowledge of the Company, any entity in which
any officer, director, or any such employee has a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee or partner, in each case in excess of $120,000 other than for: (i)
payment of salary or consulting fees for services rendered, (ii) reimbursement for expenses incurred on behalf of the Company and (iii) other employee benefits, including
stock option agreements under any stock option plan of the Company.

 
( r )           Sarbanes-Oxley; Internal Accounting Controls.  The Company is in compliance with any and all applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 that are effective as of the date hereof, and any and all applicable rules and regulations promulgated by the Commission thereunder that are effective as of the date
hereof and as of the Closing Date.  The Company and the Subsidiaries maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that: (i)
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in conformity with GAAP and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific
authorization, and (iv) the recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any
differences. The Company has established disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the Company and designed
such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms.  The Company’s certifying officers have evaluated
the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by the Company’s most recently filed periodic report under the
Exchange Act (such date, the “Evaluation Date”).  The Company presented in its most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act the conclusions of the
certifying officers about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on their evaluations as of the Evaluation Date.  Since the Evaluation Date, there
have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in the Exchange Act) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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( s )           Certain Fees.  Except for a fee payable to Lane Capital Markets LLC as detailed in the November 2, 2010 Arrangement Letter, no brokerage or finder’s
fees or commissions are or will be payable by the Company to any broker, financial advisor or consultant, finder, placement agent, investment banker, bank or other Person
with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents.  The Purchaser shall have no obligation with respect to any fees or with respect to any claims
made by or on behalf of other Persons for fees of a type contemplated in this Section that may be due in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Transaction
Documents.

 
( t )           Private Placement. Assuming the accuracy of the Purchaser’s representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.2, no registration under the Securities

Act is required for the offer and sale of the Shares by the Company to the Purchaser as contemplated hereby.  The issuance and sale of the Shares hereunder does not
contravene the rules and regulations of the Trading Market.

 
( u )           Investment Company. The Company is not, and is not an Affiliate of, and immediately after receipt of payment for the Shares, will not be or be an

Affiliate of, an “investment company” within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.  The Company shall conduct its business in a manner so
that it will not become an “investment company” subject to registration under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

 
(v)           Registration Rights.  No Person has any right to cause the Company to effect the registration under the Securities Act of any securities of the Company.

 
(w)           Listing and Maintenance Requirements.  The Company has not, in the twelve (12) months preceding the date hereof, received notice from any Trading

Market on which the Common Stock is or has been listed or quoted to the effect that the Company is not in compliance or has not complied with the listing or maintenance
requirements of such Trading Market. The Company is, and has no reason to believe that it will not in the foreseeable future continue to be, in compliance with all such
listing and maintenance requirements.

 
( x )           Application of Takeover Protections.  The Company and the Board of Directors have taken all necessary action, if any, in order to render inapplicable

any control share acquisition, business combination, poison pill (including any distribution under a rights agreement) or other similar anti-takeover provision under the
Company’s certificate of incorporation (or similar charter documents) or the laws of its state of incorporation that is or could become applicable to the Purchaser as a result
of the Purchaser and the Company fulfilling their obligations or exercising their rights under the Transaction Documents, including without limitation as a result of the
Company’s issuance of the Shares and the Purchaser’s ownership of the Shares.
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( y )           Disclosure.  Except with respect to the material terms and conditions of the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents, the Company
confirms that neither it nor any other Person acting on its behalf has provided the Purchaser or its agents or counsel with any information that it believes constitutes or
might constitute material, non-public information.   The Company understands and confirms that the Purchaser will rely on the foregoing representation in effecting
transactions in securities of the Company.  All of the disclosure furnished by or on behalf of the Company to the Purchaser regarding the Company, its business and the
transactions contemplated hereby, including the Disclosure Schedules to this Agreement, is true and correct and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The press
releases disseminated by the Company during the twelve (12) months preceding the date of this Agreement taken as a whole do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made and when made, not misleading.  The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Purchaser does not make and has not made any representations or warranties
with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby other than those specifically set forth in Section 3.2 hereof.

 
( z )           No Integrated Offering. Assuming the accuracy of the Purchaser’s representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.2, neither the Company, nor any

of its Affiliates, nor any Person acting on its or their behalf has, directly or indirectly, made any offers or sales of any security or solicited any offers to buy any security,
under circumstances that would cause this offering of the Shares to be integrated with prior offerings by the Company for purposes of (i) the Securities Act which would
require the registration of any such securities under the Securities Act, or (ii) any applicable shareholder approval provisions of any Trading Market on which any of the
securities of the Company are listed or designated.

 
(aa)           Solvency.  Based on the consolidated financial condition of the Company as of the Closing Date, after giving effect to the receipt by the Company of the

proceeds from the sale of the Shares hereunder: (i) the fair saleable value of the Company’s assets exceeds the amount that will be required to be paid on or in respect of the
Company’s existing debts and other liabilities (including known contingent liabilities) as they mature, (ii) the Company’s assets do not constitute unreasonably small
capital to carry on its business as now conducted and as proposed to be conducted including its capital needs taking into account the particular capital requirements of the
business conducted by the Company, and projected capital requirements and capital availability thereof, and (iii) the current cash flow of the Company, together with the
proceeds the Company would receive, were it to liquidate all of its assets, after taking into account all anticipated uses of the cash, would be sufficient to pay all amounts on
or in respect of its liabilities when such amounts are required to be paid.  The Company does not intend to incur debts beyond its ability to pay such debts as they mature
(taking into account the timing and amounts of cash to be payable on or in respect of its debt).  The Company has no knowledge of any facts or circumstances that lead it to
believe that it will file for reorganization or liquidation under the bankruptcy or reorganization laws of any jurisdiction within twelve (12) months from the Initial Closing
Date.  Schedule 3.1(aa) sets forth as of the date hereof all outstanding secured and unsecured Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary, or for which the Company or
any Subsidiary has commitments.  For the purposes of this Agreement, “Indebtedness” means (x) any liabilities for borrowed money or amounts owed in excess of $50,000
(other than trade accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business), (y) all guaranties, endorsements and other contingent obligations in respect of indebtedness
of others, whether or not the same are or should be reflected in the Company’s balance sheet (or the notes thereto), except guaranties by endorsement of negotiable
instruments for deposit or collection or similar transactions in the ordinary course of business; and (z) the present value of any lease payments in excess of $50,000 due
under leases required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP.  Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is in default with respect to any Indebtedness.

 
 
 
 

16



 
 
 

( b b )           Tax Status.  Except for matters that would not, individually or in the aggregate, result in or have or reasonably be expected to result in or have a
Material Adverse Effect, the Company and each Subsidiary (i) has made or filed all United States federal and state income and all foreign income and franchise tax returns,
reports and declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject, (ii) has paid all taxes and other governmental assessments and charges that are material in
amount, shown or determined to be due on such returns, reports and declarations and (iii) has set aside on its books provision reasonably adequate for the payment of all
material taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations apply.  The Company has not received notice from any taxing authority in
any jurisdiction claiming unpaid taxes in any material amount are due in such jurisdiction, and the officers of the Company or of any Subsidiary know of no basis for any
such claim.

 
( c c )           No General Solicitation.  Neither the Company nor any person acting on behalf of the Company has offered or sold any of the Shares by any form of

general solicitation or general advertising.  The Company has offered the Shares for sale only to the Purchaser.
 

( d d )           Foreign Corrupt Practices.  Neither the Company, nor to the knowledge of the Company, any agent or other person acting on behalf of the Company,
has: (i) directly or indirectly, used any funds for unlawful contributions, gifts, entertainment or other unlawful expenses related to foreign or domestic political activity, (ii)
made any unlawful payment to foreign or domestic government officials or employees or to any foreign or domestic political parties or campaigns from corporate funds,
(iii) failed to disclose fully any contribution made by the Company (or made by any person acting on its behalf of which the Company is aware) which is in violation of law
or (iv) violated in any material respect any provision of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended.
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( e e )           Accountants.  The Company’s accounting firm is Madsen Bros. & Associates, LLC.  To the knowledge and belief of the Company, such accounting
firm: (i) is a registered public accounting firm as required by the Exchange Act and (ii) shall express its opinion with respect to the financial statements to be included in the
Company’s Annual Report for the year ending September 30, 2010.

 
( f f )           No Disagreements with Accountants and Lawyers.   There are no disagreements of any kind presently existing, or to the knowledge of the Company

threatened, between the Company and the accountants and lawyers formerly or presently employed by the Company and the Company is current with respect to any fees
owed to its accountants and lawyers which could affect the Company’s ability to perform any of its obligations under any of the Transaction Documents.

 
( g g )            Acknowledgment Regarding Purchaser’s Purchase of Shares.  The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Purchaser is acting solely in the

capacity of an arm’s length purchaser with respect to the Transaction Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby. The Company further acknowledges that the
Purchaser is not acting as a financial advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to the Transaction Documents and the transactions
contemplated thereby and any advice given by the Purchaser or any of its representatives or agents in connection with the Transaction Documents and the transactions
contemplated thereby is merely incidental to the Purchaser’s purchase of the Shares.  The Company further represents to the Purchaser that the Company’s decision to enter
into this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the transactions contemplated hereby by the Company and
its representatives.

 
(hh)           Acknowledgment Regarding Purchaser’s Trading Activity.  Anything in this Agreement or elsewhere herein to the contrary notwithstanding (except for

Sections 3.2(f) and 4.10 hereof), it is understood and acknowledged by the Company that: (i) the Purchaser has not been asked by the Company to agree, nor has the
Purchaser agreed, to desist from purchasing or selling, long and/or short, securities of the Company, or “derivative” securities based on securities issued by the Company or
to hold the Shares for any specified term, (ii) past or future open market or other transactions by the Purchaser, specifically including, without limitation, Short Sales or
“derivative” transactions, before or after the closing of this or future private placement transactions, may negatively impact the market price of the Company’s publicly-
traded securities, (iii) the Purchaser, and counter-parties in “derivative” transactions to which the Purchaser is a party, directly or indirectly, may presently have a “short”
position in the Common Stock and (iv) the Purchaser shall not be deemed to have any affiliation with or control over any arm’s length counter-party in any “derivative”
transaction.  The Company further understands and acknowledges that (y) the Purchaser may engage in hedging activities at various times during the period that the Shares
are outstanding, and (z) such hedging activities (if any) could reduce the value of the existing stockholders’ equity interests in the Company at and after the time that the
hedging activities are being conducted.  The Company acknowledges that such aforementioned hedging activities do not constitute a breach of any of the Transaction
Documents.
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(ii)      Regulation M Compliance.  The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has, (i) taken, directly or indirectly, any action designed
to cause or to result in the stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of any of the Shares, (ii) sold, bid for,
purchased, or paid any compensation for soliciting purchases of, any of the Shares, or (iii) paid or agreed to pay to any Person any compensation for soliciting another to
purchase any other securities of the Company, other than, in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii), compensation paid to the Company’s placement agent in connection with the
placement of the Shares.

 
( j j )           Stock Option Plans. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.1(jj), each stock option granted by the Company under the Company’s stock option plan was

granted (i) in accordance with the terms of the Company’s stock option plan and (ii) with an exercise price at least equal to the fair market value of the Common Stock on
the date such stock option would be considered granted under GAAP and applicable law.  No stock option granted under the Company’s stock option plan has been
backdated.  The Company has not knowingly granted, and there is no and has been no Company policy or practice to knowingly grant, stock options prior to, or otherwise
knowingly coordinate the grant of stock options with, the release or other public announcement of material information regarding the Company or its Subsidiaries or their
financial results or prospects.

 
( k k )           Office of Foreign Assets Control.  Neither the Company nor, to the Company's knowledge, any director, officer, agent, employee or affiliate of the

Company is currently subject to any U.S. sanctions administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Treasury Department (“OFAC”).
 

( l l )           U.S. Real Property Holding Corporation.  The Company is not and has never been a U.S. real property holding corporation within the meaning of
Section 897 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Company shall so certify upon the Purchaser’s request.

 
(mm)           Bank Holding Company Act.  Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates is subject to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as

amended (the “BHCA”) and to regulation by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve”).  Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries or Affiliates owns or controls, directly or indirectly, five percent (5%) or more of the outstanding shares of any class of voting securities or twenty-five percent
(25%) or more of the total equity of a bank or any entity that is subject to the BHCA and to regulation by the Federal Reserve.  Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries or Affiliates exercises a controlling influence over the management or policies of a bank or any entity that is subject to the BHCA and to regulation by the
Federal Reserve.

 
(nn)           Money Laundering.  The operations of the Company are and have been conducted at all times in compliance with applicable financial record-keeping

and reporting requirements of the Currency and Foreign Transactions Reporting Act of 1970, as amended, applicable money laundering statutes and applicable rules and
regulations thereunder (collectively, the “Money Laundering Laws”), and no action, suit or proceeding by or before any court or governmental agency, authority or body or
any arbitrator involving the Company with respect to the Money Laundering Laws is pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened.
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3 . 2           Representations and Warranties of the Purchaser.  The Purchaser hereby represents and warrants as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date to the

Company as follows (unless as of a specific date therein):
 

( a )           Organization; Authority. The Purchaser is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its
organization with full right, corporate or partnership power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents and
otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents and performance by the Purchaser of the
transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate, partnership, limited liability company or similar action, as
applicable, on the part of the Purchaser.  Each Transaction Document to which it is a party has been duly executed by the Purchaser, and when delivered by the Purchaser in
accordance with the terms hereof, will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of the Purchaser, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except: (i) as
limited by general equitable principles and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of
creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies and (iii) insofar as
indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited by applicable law.

 
( b )           Own Account. The Purchaser understands that the Shares are “restricted securities” and have not been registered under the Securities Act or any

applicable state securities law and is acquiring the Shares as principal for its own account and not with a view to or for distributing or reselling such Shares or any part
thereof in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law, has no present intention of distributing any of such Shares in violation of the Securities Act or
any applicable state securities law and has no direct or indirect arrangement or understandings with any other persons to distribute or regarding the distribution of such
Shares in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law (this representation and warranty not limiting the Purchaser’s right to sell the Shares in
compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws). The Purchaser is acquiring the Shares hereunder in the ordinary course of its business.

 
(c)           Purchaser Status.  At the time the Purchaser was offered the Shares, it was, and as of the date hereof it is either: (i) an “accredited investor” as defined in

Rule 501(a)(1), (a)(2), (a)(3), (a)(7) or (a)(8) under the Securities Act or (ii) a “qualified institutional buyer” as defined in Rule 144A(a) under the Securities Act.  The
Purchaser is not required to be registered as a broker-dealer under Section 15 of the Exchange Act.

 
( d )           Experience of the Purchaser. The Purchaser, either alone or together with its representatives, has such knowledge, sophistication and experience in

business and financial matters so as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment in the Shares, and has so evaluated the merits and risks of
such investment. The Purchaser is able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Shares and, at the present time, is able to afford a complete loss of such
investment.
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( e )           General Solicitation. The Purchaser is not purchasing the Shares as a result of any advertisement, article, notice or other communication regarding the
Shares published in any newspaper, magazine or similar media or broadcast over television or radio or presented at any seminar or any other general solicitation or general
advertisement.

 
(f)           Certain Transactions and Confidentiality.  Other than consummating the transactions contemplated hereunder, the Purchaser has not directly or indirectly,

nor has any Person acting on behalf of or pursuant to any understanding with the Purchaser, executed any purchases or sales, including Short Sales, of the securities of the
Company during the period commencing as of the time that the Purchaser first received a term sheet (written or oral) from the Company or any other Person representing
the Company setting forth the material terms of the transactions contemplated hereunder and ending immediately prior to the execution hereof.  Other than to other Persons
party to this Agreement, the Purchaser has maintained the confidentiality of all disclosures made to it in connection with this transaction (including the existence and terms
of this transaction). Notwithstanding the foregoing, for avoidance of doubt, nothing contained herein shall constitute a representation or warranty, or preclude any actions,
with respect to the identification of the availability of, or securing of, available shares to borrow in order to effect Short Sales or similar transactions in the future.

 
The Company acknowledges and agrees that the representations contained in Section 3.2 shall not modify, amend or affect the Purchaser’s right to rely on the Company’s
representations and warranties contained in this Agreement or any representations and warranties contained in any other Transaction Document or any other document or
instrument executed and/or delivered in connection with this Agreement or the consummation of the transaction contemplated hereby.
 

ARTICLE IV.
OTHER AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES

 
4.1           Transfer Restrictions; Legend and Legend Removal.

 
(a)           The Shares may only be disposed of in compliance with state and federal securities laws.  In connection with any transfer of Shares other than pursuant to

an effective registration statement or Rule 144, to the Company or to an Affiliate of the Purchaser or in connection with a pledge as contemplated in Section 4.1(b), the
Company may require the transferor thereof to provide to the Company an opinion of counsel selected by the transferor and reasonably acceptable to the Company, the
form and substance of which opinion shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Company, to the effect that such transfer does not require registration of such transferred Shares
under the Securities Act.  As a condition of transfer, any such transferee shall agree in writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement and shall have the rights and
obligations of the Purchaser under this Agreement.
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(b)           The Purchaser agrees to the imprinting, so long as is required by this Section 4.1, of a legend on any of the Shares in the following form:
 

THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN  REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY
STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”),
AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL
OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE
COMPANY.  THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT WITH A REGISTERED BROKER-DEALER
OR OTHER LOAN WITH A FINANCIAL INSTITUTION THAT IS AN “ACCREDITED INVESTOR” AS DEFINED IN RULE 501(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.

 
The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Purchaser may from time to time pledge pursuant to a bona fide margin agreement with a registered broker-dealer

or grant a security interest in some or all of the Shares to a financial institution that is an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a) under the Securities Act and that
agrees to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement and, if required under the terms of such arrangement, the Purchaser may transfer pledged or secured Shares to the
pledgees or secured parties.  Such a pledge or transfer would not be subject to approval of the Company and no legal opinion of legal counsel of the pledgee, secured party
or pledgor shall be required in connection therewith.  The Purchaser shall provide notice to the Company of any such pledge or transfer.  At the Purchaser’s expense, the
Company will execute and deliver such reasonable documentation as a pledgee or secured party of Shares may reasonably request in connection with a pledge or transfer of
the Shares, including, if the Shares are then registered for resale, the preparation and filing of any required prospectus supplement under Rule 424(b)(3) under the Securities
Act or other applicable provision of the Securities Act to appropriately amend the list of selling stockholders.

 
(c)           Certificates evidencing the Shares shall not contain any legend (including the legend set forth in Section 4.1(b) hereof), (i) while a registration statement

covering the resale of such security is effective under the Securities Act, (ii) following any sale of such Shares pursuant to Rule 144, (iii) if such Shares are eligible for sale
under Rule 144, without the requirement for the Company to be in compliance with the current public information required under Rule 144 as to such Shares and without
volume or manner-of-sale restrictions, or (iv) if such legend is not required under applicable requirements of the Securities Act (including judicial interpretations and
pronouncements issued by the staff of the Commission).   From and after six (6) months from the applicable Closing Date, unless the Purchaser is then an Affiliate of the
Company, the Company shall, at the request of the Purchaser, cause its counsel to issue a legal opinion to the Transfer Agent if required by the Transfer Agent to effect the
removal of the legend hereunder with respect to the Shares sold or proposed to be sold.  The Company agrees that following the time as such legend is no longer required
under this Section 4.1(c), it will, no later than five (5) Trading Days following the delivery by the Purchaser to the Company or the Transfer Agent of a certificate
representing Shares issued with a restrictive legend (such fifth Trading Day, the “Legend Removal Date”), deliver or cause to be delivered to the Purchaser a certificate
representing such shares that is free from all restrictive and other legends.  The Company may not make any notation on its records or give instructions to the Transfer
Agent that enlarge the restrictions on transfer set forth in this Section 4.  Certificates for Shares subject to legend removal hereunder shall be transmitted by the Transfer
Agent to the Purchaser by crediting the account of the Purchaser’s prime broker with the Depository Trust Company System as directed by the Purchaser.
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(d)           In addition to the Purchaser’s other available remedies, the Company shall pay to the Purchaser, in cash, as partial liquidated damages and not as a

penalty, an amount equal to seven percent (7.0%) of the Subscription Amount paid for the Shares represented by the certificate or certificates delivered for removal of the
restrictive legend per week for each week or portion thereof after the Legend Removal Date until such certificate(s) is delivered without a legend.  Nothing herein shall
limit the Purchaser’s right to pursue actual damages for the Company’s failure to deliver certificates representing any Shares as required by the Transaction Documents, and
the Purchaser shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it at law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive
relief.

 
(e)           The Purchaser agrees with the Company that the Purchaser will sell any Shares pursuant to either the registration requirements of the Securities Act,

including any applicable prospectus delivery requirements, or an exemption therefrom, and that if Shares are sold pursuant to a registration statement, they will be sold in
compliance with the plan of distribution set forth therein, and acknowledges that the removal of the restrictive legend from certificates representing Shares as set forth in
this Section 4.1 is predicated upon the Company’s reliance upon this understanding.

 
4.2           Furnishing of Information; Public Information; Rule 144 Sales.

 
(a)           For a period of two (2) years from the Initial Closing Date, the Company covenants to timely file (or obtain extensions in respect thereof and file within

the applicable grace period) all reports required to be filed by the Company after the date hereof pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act provided that the Company
is then subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act.  As long as the Purchaser owns Shares, if the Company is not required to file reports pursuant to the
Exchange Act, it will prepare and furnish to the Purchaser and make publicly available in accordance with Rule 144(c) such information as is required for the Purchaser to
sell the Shares, including without limitation, under Rule 144.  The Company further covenants that it will take such further action as any holder of Shares may reasonably
request, to the extent required from time to time to enable such Person to sell such Shares without registration under the Securities Act, including without limitation, within
the requirements of the exemption provided by Rule 144.
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(b)           At any time during the period commencing on the Initial Closing Date and ending at such time that all of the Shares may be sold without the requirement

for the Company to be in compliance with Rule 144(c)(1) and otherwise without restriction or limitation pursuant to Rule 144, if the Company shall fail for any reason to
satisfy the current public information requirement under Rule 144(c) (a “Public Information Failure”) then, in addition to the Purchaser’s other available remedies, the
Company shall pay to the Purchaser, in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, by reason of any such delay in or reduction of its ability to sell the Shares, an
amount in cash equal to seven percent (7.0%) of the Subscription Amount paid for such Shares per month for each month or portion thereof there exists a Public Information
Failure. The payments to which the Purchaser shall be entitled pursuant to this Section 4.2(b) are referred to herein as “Public Information Failure Payments.”  Public
Information Failure Payments shall be paid within five (5) Business Days of the occurrence of the Public Information Failure and on or before the last day of each calendar
month thereafter if the Public Information Failure continues beyond the first month.  In the event the Company fails to make Public Information Failure Payments in a
timely manner, such Public Information Failure  Payments shall bear interest at the rate of 1.5% per month (prorated for partial months) until paid in full.  Nothing herein
shall limit the Purchaser’s right to pursue actual damages for the Public Information Failure, and the Purchaser shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it at
law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief.

 
(c)           In addition to the Purchaser’s other available remedies, in the event Purchaser is unable, due to any action or failure to act on the part of the Company

within the Company’s control, to sell any Shares purchased hereunder in accordance with Rule 144 upon the six (6) month anniversary of the sale of such Shares other than
due to a Public Information Failure, then the Company shall pay to the Purchaser, in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, by reason of any such inability to sell
the Shares in accordance with Rule 144, an amount in cash equal to seven percent (7.0%) of the Subscription Amount paid for such Shares per month for each month or
portion thereof the Purchaser is unable to sell such shares.  Nothing herein shall limit the Purchaser’s right to pursue actual damages against the Company in connection
with Purchaser’s inability to sell Shares pursuant to Rule 144 (other than for any inability to sell due to Purchaser’s own conduct or actions or any act or event outside the
control of the Company, including any force majeure event), and the Purchaser shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it at law or in equity including,
without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief.

 
4 . 3           Integration.  The Company shall not sell, offer for sale or solicit offers to buy or otherwise negotiate in respect of any security (as defined in Section 2 of the

Securities Act) that would be integrated with the offer or sale of the Shares in a manner that would require the registration under the Securities Act of the sale of the Shares or that
would be integrated with the offer or sale of the Shares for purposes of the rules and regulations of any Trading Market such that it would require shareholder approval prior to the
closing of such other transaction unless shareholder approval is obtained before the closing of such subsequent transaction.
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4 . 4           Securities Laws Disclosure; Publicity.  The Company shall timely file a Current Report on Form 8-K and press release disclosing the material terms of the
transactions contemplated hereby, and including the Transaction Documents as exhibits thereto.  From and after the issuance of such press release, the Company shall have
publicly disclosed all material, non-public information delivered to the Purchaser by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or any of their respective officers, directors,
employees or agents in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents.  The Company and the Purchaser shall consult with each other in issuing any
other press releases with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby, and neither the Company nor the Purchaser shall issue any such press release nor otherwise make any
such public statement without the prior consent of the Company, with respect to any press release of the Purchaser, or without the prior consent of the Purchaser, with respect to
any press release of the Company, which consent shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed, except if such disclosure is required by law, in which case the disclosing party
shall promptly provide the other party with prior notice of such public statement or communication.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not publicly disclose the
name of the Purchaser, or include the name of the Purchaser in any filing with the Commission or any regulatory agency or Trading Market, without the prior written consent of the
Purchaser, except: (a) as required by federal securities law in connection with (i) any registration statement contemplated by Section 4.13 and (ii) the filing of final Transaction
Documents (including signature pages thereto) with the Commission, and (b) to the extent such disclosure is required by law or Trading Market regulations, in which case the
Company shall provide the Purchaser with prior notice of such disclosure permitted under this clause (b).
 

4 . 5           Shareholder Rights Plan.  No claim will be made or enforced by the Company or, with the consent of the Company, any other Person, that the Purchaser is an
“Acquiring Person” under any control share acquisition, business combination, poison pill (including any distribution under a rights agreement) or similar anti-takeover plan or
arrangement in effect or hereafter adopted by the Company, or that the Purchaser could be deemed to trigger the provisions of any such plan or arrangement, by virtue of receiving
Shares under the Transaction Documents or under any other agreement between the Company and the Purchaser.
 

4 . 6           Non-Public Information.  Except with respect to the material terms and conditions of the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents, the
Company covenants and agrees that neither it, nor any other Person acting on its behalf, will provide the Purchaser or its agents or counsel with any information that the Company
believes constitutes material non-public information, unless prior thereto the Purchaser shall have executed a written agreement with the Company regarding the confidentiality and
use of such information.  The Company understands and confirms that the Purchaser shall be relying on the foregoing covenant in effecting transactions in securities of the
Company.
 

4.7           Use of Proceeds.  Except as set forth on Schedule 4.7 attached hereto, the Company shall use the net proceeds from the sale of the Shares hereunder for working
capital and general corporate purposes and shall not use such proceeds for: (a) the satisfaction of any portion of the Company’s debt (other than payment of trade payables in the
ordinary course of the Company’s business and prior practices), (b) the redemption of any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents, (c) the settlement of any outstanding
litigation or (d) in violation of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, or any regulations promulgated thereunder, or any OFAC regulations.
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4 . 8           Indemnification of Purchaser.   Subject to the provisions of this Section 4.8, the Company will indemnify and hold the Purchaser and its directors, officers,

shareholders, members, partners, employees and agents (and any other Persons with a functionally equivalent role of a Person holding such titles notwithstanding a lack of such
title or any other title), each Person who controls the Purchaser (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act and Section 20 of the Exchange Act), and the directors,
officers, shareholders, agents, members, partners or employees (and any other Persons with a functionally equivalent role of a Person holding such titles notwithstanding a lack of
such title or any other title) of such controlling persons (each, a “Purchaser Party”) harmless from any and all losses, liabilities, obligations, claims, contingencies, damages, costs
and expenses, including all judgments, amounts paid in settlements, court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of investigation that any Purchaser Party may suffer or
incur as a result of or relating to (a) any material breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements made by the Company in this Agreement or in the other
Transaction Documents or (b) any action instituted against the Purchaser in any capacity, or any of them or their respective Affiliates, by any stockholder of the Company who is
not an Affiliate of the Purchaser, with respect to any of the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents (unless such action is based upon a breach of the Purchaser’s
representations, warranties or covenants under the Transaction Documents or any agreements or understandings the Purchaser may have with any such stockholder or any
violations by the Purchaser of state or federal securities laws or any conduct by the Purchaser which constitutes fraud, gross negligence, willful misconduct or malfeasance).  If any
action shall be brought against any Purchaser Party in respect of which indemnity may be sought pursuant to this Agreement, the Purchaser Party shall promptly notify the
Company in writing, and the Company shall have the right to assume the defense thereof with counsel of its own choosing reasonably acceptable to the Purchaser Party.  Any
Purchaser Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel in any such action and participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the
expense of the Purchaser Party except to the extent that (i) the employment thereof has been specifically authorized by the Company in writing, (ii) the Company has failed after a
reasonable period of time to assume such defense and to employ counsel or (iii) in such action there is, in the reasonable opinion of counsel, a material conflict on any material
issue between the position of the Company and the position of the Purchaser Party, in which case the Company shall be responsible for the reasonable fees and expenses of no
more than one such separate counsel.  The Company will not be liable to any Purchaser Party under this Agreement (y) for any settlement by a Purchaser Party effected without the
Company’s prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; or (z) to the extent, but only to the extent that a loss, claim, damage or liability is
attributable to any Purchaser Party’s breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements made by the Purchaser Party in this Agreement or in the other
Transaction Documents.  The indemnification required by this Section 4.8 shall be made by periodic payments of the amount thereof during the course of the investigation or
defense, as and when bills are received or are incurred. The indemnity agreements contained herein shall be in addition to any cause of action or similar right of any Purchaser
Party against the Company or others, and (y) any liabilities the Company may be subject to pursuant to law.
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4 . 9           Listing of Common Stock. The Company hereby agrees to use best efforts to maintain the listing or quotation (as applicable) of the Common Stock on the

Trading Market on which it is currently listed and all other Trading Markets on which such Common Stock may hereafter be listed or quoted (as applicable) and will comply in all
respects with the Company’s reporting, filing and other obligations under the bylaws or rules of such Trading Market(s).  The Company further agrees, if the Company applies to
have the Common Stock traded on any other Trading Market, it will then include in such application all of the Shares, and will take such other action as is necessary to cause all of
the Shares to be listed or quoted on such other Trading Market as promptly as possible.
 

4 .10           Certain Transactions and Confidentiality. The Purchaser covenants that neither it, nor any Affiliate acting on its behalf or pursuant to any understanding with
it, will execute any purchases or sales, including Short Sales, of any of the Company’s securities during the period commencing with the execution of this Agreement and ending on
the earlier of the date of termination of this Agreement and the date of the final Subsequent Closing hereunder.  The Purchaser covenants that until such time as the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement are publicly disclosed by the Company pursuant to the initial press release as described in Section 4.4, the Purchaser will maintain the
confidentiality of the existence and terms of this transaction and the information included in the Transaction Documents and the Disclosure Schedules.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, and notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the Company expressly acknowledges and agrees that (i) the Purchaser makes no
representation, warranty or covenant hereby that it will not engage in effecting transactions in any securities of the Company after the time that the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement are first publicly announced pursuant to the initial press release as described in Section 4.4, (ii) the Purchaser shall not be restricted or prohibited from effecting
any transactions in any securities of the Company in accordance with applicable securities laws from and after the time that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are
first publicly announced pursuant to the initial press release as described in Section 4.4 and (iii) the Purchaser shall have no duty of confidentiality to the Company or its
Subsidiaries after the issuance of the initial press release as described in Section 4.4, provided, that the Purchaser will not engage in any Short Sales while it holds any of the
Shares. 
 

4 . 1 1           Form D; Blue Sky Filings.  The Company agrees to timely file a Form D with respect to the Shares as required under Regulation D and to provide a copy
thereof, promptly upon request of the Purchaser. The Company shall take such action as the Company shall reasonably determine is necessary in order to obtain an exemption for,
or to qualify the Shares for, sale to the Purchaser at the Closing under applicable securities or “Blue Sky” laws of the states of the United States, and shall provide evidence of such
actions promptly upon request of the Purchaser.
 

4 . 1 2           Delivery of Shares After Closing.  The Company shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, a certificate representing the respective Shares purchased by the
Purchaser at each Closing to the Purchaser within five (5) Trading Days of the applicable Closing Date.
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4 . 1 3           Piggyback Registration Rights. If, at any time after the Initial Closing Date, the Company shall propose to file with the Commission a registration statement
under the Securities Act other than on Forms S-4 or S-8 (or any successor to such forms), the Company shall give notice to the Purchaser and include in such registration statement
all or any part of the Shares that the Purchaser requests to be registered; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to register any Shares pursuant to this Section
4.13 that are eligible for resale pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act without any requirement for the Company to maintain current public information and without any
limitation on volume or manner of sale.  The Company shall use best efforts to cause such registration statement to become effective as soon as practicable.
 

ARTICLE V.
MISCELLANEOUS

 
5.1           Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by the Purchaser:

 
(a)           upon written notice to the Company, if the Initial Closing has not been consummated on or before December 31, 2010; or

 
(b)           upon written notice to the Company, if at any time prior to the final Subsequent Closing the Company consummates a financing to which the Purchaser

is not a party;
 
provided, however, that no such termination pursuant to this Section 5.1 will affect the right of any party to sue for any breach by the other party (or parties) arising or occurring
prior to the effective date of termination.
 

5.2           Fees and Expenses.  Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement and as set forth in this Section 5.2 below, each party shall pay the fees and expenses of its
own advisers, counsel, accountants and other experts, if any, and all other expenses incurred by such party incident to the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and
performance of this Agreement.  The Company shall pay all stamp and other taxes and duties levied in connection with the delivery of the Shares.  Notwithstanding the foregoing,
at the Initial Closing the Company shall reimburse the Purchaser for the fees and expenses of its counsel, White White & Van Etten PC, in an amount equal to $25,000 and at each
Subsequent Closing the Company shall reimburse the Purchaser for the fees and expenses of its counsel, White White & Van Etten PC, in an amount equal to $2,500.  Such legal
fees may be withheld by the Purchaser from the Subscription Amount to be paid for the Shares purchased at the Initial Closing and any Subsequent Closing.
 

5 . 3           Entire Agreement.  The Transaction Documents, together with the schedules thereto, contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, with respect to such matters, which the parties acknowledge have been merged into such
documents, exhibits and schedules.
 

5 . 4           Notices.  Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries required or permitted to be provided hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed
given and effective on the earliest of: (a) the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth on the signature
pages attached hereto prior to 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on a Trading Day, (b) the next Trading Day after the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is
delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth on the signature pages attached hereto on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on
any Trading Day, (c) the second (2 nd) Trading Day following the date of mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight courier service or (d) upon actual receipt by the
party to whom such notice is required to be given.  The address for such notices and communications shall be as set forth on the signature pages attached hereto.
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5.5           Amendments; Waivers.  No provision of this Agreement may be waived, modified, supplemented or amended except in a written instrument signed, in the case
of an amendment, by the Company and the Purchaser or, in the case of a waiver, by the party against whom enforcement of any such waived provision is sought.  No waiver of any
default with respect to any provision, condition or requirement of this Agreement shall be deemed to be a continuing waiver in the future or a waiver of any subsequent default or a
waiver of any other provision, condition or requirement hereof, nor shall any delay or omission of any party to exercise any right hereunder in any manner impair the exercise of
any such right.
 

5 . 6           Headings.  The headings herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to limit or affect any of the
provisions hereof.
 

5.7           Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and permitted assigns.  The Company
may not assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the Purchaser (other than by merger or operation of law). The Purchaser
may assign any or all of its rights under this Agreement to any Person to whom the Purchaser assigns or transfers any Shares, provided that such transferee agrees in writing to be
bound, with respect to the transferred Shares, by the provisions of the Transaction Documents that apply to the “Purchaser” and provided further that the Purchaser gives prompt
written notice to the Company of any such assignment or transfer.
 

5 . 8           No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns and is not
for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced by, any other Person, except as otherwise set forth in Section 4.8.
 

5 . 9           Governing Law.  All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of the Transaction Documents shall be governed by and
construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law thereof.  Each party agrees that all legal
proceedings concerning the interpretations, enforcement and defense of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and any other Transaction Documents (whether brought
against a party hereto or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents) shall be commenced exclusively in the state and federal courts sitting in the
City of New York. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York, borough of Manhattan for the
adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any
of the Transaction Documents), and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the
jurisdiction of any such court, that such suit, action or proceeding is improper or is an inconvenient venue for such proceeding.  Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal
service of process and consents to process being served in any such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with
evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process
and notice thereof.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.  If either party shall commence
an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of the Transaction Documents, then in addition to the obligations of the Company under Section 4.8, the prevailing party in such
action or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the other party for its reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred with the investigation, preparation and
prosecution of such action or proceeding.
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5.10           Survival.  The representations and warranties contained herein shall survive the Closing and the delivery of the Shares.
 

5.11           Execution.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which when taken together shall be considered one and the same agreement
and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party, it being understood that both parties need not sign the same
counterpart.  In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf” format data file, such signature shall create a valid and binding
obligation of the party executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) with the same force and effect as if such facsimile or “.pdf” signature page were an original
thereof.
 

5 . 1 2           Severability.  If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, void or
unenforceable, the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions set forth herein shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or
invalidated, and the parties hereto shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to find and employ an alternative means to achieve the same or substantially the same result as
that contemplated by such term, provision, covenant or restriction. It is hereby stipulated and declared to be the intention of the parties that they would have executed the remaining
terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions without including any of such that may be hereafter declared invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable.
 

5 .13           Replacement of Shares.  If any certificate or instrument evidencing any Shares is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company shall issue or cause to be
issued in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation thereof (in the case of mutilation), or in lieu of and substitution therefor, a new certificate or instrument, but only
upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of such loss, theft or destruction.  The applicant for a new certificate or instrument under such circumstances shall
also pay any reasonable third-party costs (including customary indemnity) associated with the issuance of such replacement Shares.
 

5.14           Remedies.  In addition to being entitled to exercise all rights provided herein or granted by law, including recovery of damages, each of the Purchaser and the
Company will be entitled to specific performance under the Transaction Documents.  The parties agree that monetary damages may not be adequate compensation for any loss
incurred by reason of any breach of obligations contained in the Transaction Documents and hereby agree to waive and not to assert in any action for specific performance of any
such obligation the defense that a remedy at law would be adequate.
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5 .15           Payment Set Aside.  To the extent that the Company makes a payment or payments to the Purchaser pursuant to any Transaction Document or the Purchaser
enforces or exercises its rights thereunder, and such payment or payments or the proceeds of such enforcement or exercise or any part thereof are subsequently invalidated, declared
to be fraudulent or preferential, set aside, recovered from, disgorged by or are required to be refunded, repaid or otherwise restored to the Company, a trustee, receiver or any other
person under any law (including, without limitation, any bankruptcy law, state or federal law, common law or equitable cause of action), then to the extent of any such restoration
the obligation or part thereof originally intended to be satisfied shall be revived and continued in full force and effect as if such payment had not been made or such enforcement or
setoff had not occurred.
 

5 . 1 6           Liquidated Damages.  The Company’s obligations to pay any partial liquidated damages or other amounts owing under the Transaction Documents is a
continuing obligation of the Company and shall not terminate until all unpaid partial liquidated damages and other amounts have been paid notwithstanding the fact that the
instrument or security pursuant to which such partial liquidated damages or other amounts are due and payable shall have been canceled.
 

5.17           Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc.  If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall not be
a Business Day, then such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next succeeding Business Day.
 

5 . 1 8           Construction. The parties agree that each of them and/or their respective counsel has reviewed and had an opportunity to revise the Transaction Documents
and, therefore, the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of the
Transaction Documents or any amendments hereto. In addition, each and every reference to share prices and shares of Common Stock in any Transaction Document shall be
subject to adjustment for reverse and forward stock splits, stock dividends, stock combinations and other similar transactions of the Common Stock that occur after the date of this
Agreement.
 

5 . 1 9           WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  IN ANY ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING IN ANY JURISDICTION BROUGHT BY ANY PARTY AGAINST
ANY OTHER PARTY, THE PARTIES EACH KNOWINGLY AND INTENTIONALLY, TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW,
HEREBY ABSOLUTELY, UNCONDITIONALLY, IRREVOCABLY AND EXPRESSLY WAIVES FOREVER TRIAL BY JURY.
 

(Signature Pages Follow)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized signatories as of the date
first indicated above.
 
Visualant, Incorporated
 

Address for Notice:

By: /s/ Ronald Erickson                                                                          
Name:  Ronald Erickson
Title: Chief Executive Officer

 

500 Union Street
Suite 406
Seattle, WA 98101
Attention:  Ronald Erickson, Chief Executive Officer
Fax:  206-903-1352
Email: ron@ronerickson.com
 

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:
 

Monahan & Biagi, PLLC
701 Fifth Avenue
Suite 2800
Seattle, WA 98104
Attention: James F. Biagi, Jr., Esq.
Fax:  206-587-5710
Email: jbiagi@monahanbiagi.com
 

Seaside 88, LP
 
By:  Seaside 88 Advisors, LLC

Address for Notice:

 
 
By: /s/ William Ritger                                                                              

Name: William J. Ritger
Title:   Manager

 

750 Ocean Royale Way
Suite 805
North Palm Beach, FL 33408
Attention:  William J. Ritger and
Denis M. O’Donnell, M.D.
Fax:  866-358-6721
Email:  dod@seaside88.com
wjr@seaside88.com
 

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:
 
 
 

White White & Van Etten PC
55 Cambridge Parkway
Cambridge, MA 02142
Attention:  David A. White, Esq.
Fax:  617-225-0205
Email:  daw@wwvlaw.com
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EXHIBIT 31.1

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATIONS

I, Ronald P. Erickson, certify that:

1.   I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Visualant, Inc.;

2.   Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.   Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.   The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)   Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report
is being prepared;

b)   Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c)   Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)   Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting;
and

5.   The registrant’s other certifying officer(a) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)   Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date:   February 11, 2011

Ronald P. Erickson
Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATIONS

I, Mark Scott, certify that:

1.   I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Visualant, Inc.:

2.   Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.   Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.   The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)   Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report
is being prepared;

b)   Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c)   Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)   Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting;
and

5.   The registrant’s other certifying officer(a) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)   Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date:   February 11, 2011

Mark Scott
Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Visualant, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Ronald P. Erickson, Chief Executive Officer and I, Mark Scott, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company for the dates and periods
covered by the Report.

This certificate is being made for the exclusive purpose of compliance by the Chief Executive and Financial and Accounting Officer of the Company with the requirements of
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and may not be disclosed, distributed or used by any person or for any reason other than as specifically required by law.

Ronald P. Erickson
Chief Executive Officer
February 11, 2011
 
 
Mark Scott
Chief Financial Officer
February 11, 2011


